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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of K.
H. Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to our shareholders the 2021/22 Annual Report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by approximately 19.5%
to approximately HK$751,767,000 during the year ended 31
March 2022 (2021: approximately HK$933,797,000). The loss and
total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2022
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$18,346,000 (2021: profit and total comprehensive income
amounted to approximately HK$1,071,000).

The outbreak of the COVID-19 (the “Epidemic”) has created a
challenging operating environment for the foundation industry since
early 2020, including but not limited to supply chain disruptions,
workforce shortages due to illness and preventative quarantines, work
stoppages as a result of policies imposed by the HKSAR Government,
etc. These situations were further exacerbated by the fifth wave of
the Epidemic during the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group will
actively devote its efforts to facilitate the prevention and control of
further spreading of the Epidemic in its premises and construction
sites and to ensure the health and safety of its employees.

It is believed that the uncertainty arising from the Epidemic, the
intense competition in the foundation industry, price fluctuation of raw
materials, the price strategy of subcontractors and labour costs will
affect the operational and financial performance of the Group in the
short run. The Group will keep close watch on the evolving situation
from time to time and adopt different tendering strategies and foster
long-term relationships with different quality customers so as to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness in the market.

Notwithstanding the above, as supported by the 2021 Policy Address
of Hong Kong, land and housing are still the most important agendas.
The Government of the HKSAR targets to identify additional land
supply and provide more housing in both the medium and the long
term. The Group remains optimistic towards the foundation industry
in Hong Kong as a result of the boosting of land supply for housing
developments for both the private and the public sectors as well as
fostering infrastructure development plans.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Apart from abovementioned services, the Group will continue to
explore and identify suitable investment opportunities in order to
broaden our revenue base to maximise the return to our shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group will
continue to exercise due care in pursuing its core business and
promoting its development plans so as to balance the risks and
opportunities in the foundation industry in Hong Kong. The Group
will also closely and carefully monitor the latest development in the
global economy and foundation industry in Hong Kong and adjust its
business strategies from time to time if required.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their continuous trust and support. | would also
like to express our sincere appreciation to the fellow Directors and
staff for their contribution and dedication to the continuous business
development of the Group.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation services (the “Foundation”) and
the leasing of machinery (the “Leasing”) in Hong Kong and trading of
electronic devices in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

FOUNDATION SERVICES

There were 9 active projects as at 31 March 2021. As at 31 March
2022, 4 of these projects have been practically completed while the
other 5 projects remain in progress.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, 3 new projects have been
awarded to the Group and 1 of these projects remains in progress
as at 31 March 2022. As such, there were a total of 7 projects in
progress as at 31 March 2022.

TRADING OF ELECTRONIC DEVICES

In order to diversify the income stream and business risks, the Group
commenced to engage in trading of electronic devices during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by 19.5% from approximately
HK$933,797,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$751,767,000 during the year ended 31 March
2022. The decrease in the Group’s overall revenue was mainly
attributable to i) delay of works schedules of certain projects due
to the outbreak of the COVID-19 during the year ended 31 March
2022; and ii) completion of certain projects located in the Kai Tak
Development area during the year ended 31 March 2022.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GROSS PROFIT/GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The overall gross profit decreased by 28.6% from approximately
HK$41,653,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$29,748,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022,
The overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 4.5%
during the year ended 31 March 2021 to approximately 4.0% during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and such were mainly attributable to
the combined effects of the followings:

i. increase in construction costs incurred during the completion
stage of certain projects during the year ended 31 March 2022;
and

ii. unexpected increase in project costs incurred to due to the
unexpected changes in on-site arrangements and works
schedules of certain projects because of the outbreak of
COVID-19 during the year ended 31 March 2022.

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income decreased from approximately
HK$12,699,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$8,084,000 during the year ended 31 March
2022. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the fact that the
Group received a non-recurring government grant of approximately
HK$5,819,000 under the Employment Support Scheme launched by
the Hong Kong Government during the year ended 31 March 2021
but no such income has been received during the current year.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses increased
by 6.5% from approximately HK$43,626,000 during the year ended
31 March 2021 to approximately HK$46,441,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2022. Such increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in payments of administrative employee benefits expenses of
approximately HK$18,449,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021
to approximately HK$20,946,000 during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately
HK$7,513,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$8,825,000 during the year ended 31 March 2022,
Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in interests
payment to banks from approximately HK$1,271,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2021 to approximately HK$2,451,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

NET (LOSS)/PROFIT

As a result of the abovementioned, the Group reported a net loss
of approximately HK$18,346,000 (2021: net profit of approximately
HK$1,071,000) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2022, the total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings, lease liabilities and other borrowings is approximately
HK$281,749,000 (2021: approximately HK$201,952,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s banking facilities were secured
by (i) the Group’s trade receivables and retention receivables
under contract assets or contract liabilities of approximately
HK$152,783,000 (2021: approximately HK$62,605,000); (i) the
Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$68,385,000
(2021: approximately HK$36,353,000); (iii) the Group’s right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment with total net carrying
amounts of approximately HK$17,249,000 (2021: approximately
HK$21,591,000); (iv) the Group’s deposits and prepayments for
life insurance policies of approximately HK$19,163,000 (2021:
approximately HK$9,274,000); (v) receivable rights of gross income
from certain projects; (vi) a personal guarantee executed by a director
of a subsidiary of the Company; and (vii) the corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and the subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2022, the guarantees on performance
bonds amounting to approximately HK$77,336,000 (2021:
HK$183,894,000) are secured by (i) the Group’s other receivables
of HK$48,216,000 (2021: HK$82,171,000); (i) a personal guarantee
executed by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and (iii)
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a subsidiary of
the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 March 2022, the guarantees on a performance bond
amounting to approximately HK$5,912,000 (2021: HK$5,912,000) is
secured by (i) the Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$10,355,000 (2021: HK$10,349,000); (i) a personnel guarantee
executed by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) the
corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

Besides, pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase agreement
entered into between New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”)
and Blessing Well Enterprise Limited (“Blessing Well”) on 27 April
2018, New Grace Gain provided an unsecured, interest-free loan of
HK$100,000,000 to the Company on 25 May 2018 for a term of 30
months (the “Unsecured Loan”). New Grace Gain shall not be entitled
to demand early repayment and the Company has no right to make
early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

Up to 31 March 2021, New Grace Gain and the Company have
entered into 3 supplemental agreements (“Agreements”) to extend the
repayment period of the Unsecured Loan for a total 18 months, i.e.
the repayment term of 30 months has been extended to 48 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, New Grace Gain and the
Company have further entered into a fourth and fifth supplemental
agreement (“Agreement 4” and “Agreement 5”) to further extend the
repayment period for an aggregate of 12 months, i.e. the repayment
term of 48 months has been extended to 60 months.

Save as the extension of the repayment period under the Agreements,
Agreement 4 and Agreement 5, other terms and conditions of the
Unsecured Loan remain unchanged.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating rates.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy
while the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate
risks continuously and cautiously.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group normally meets its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and
bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had pledged bank deposits, and
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$126,283,000 (2021:
approximately HK$42,753,000). The gearing ratio of the Group as
at 31 March 2022 (defined as the total borrowings divided by total
equity) was approximately 375.0% (2021: approximately 216.0%). As
at 31 March 2022, the current ratio of the Group was approximately
1.2 (2021: approximately 1.2).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not employ any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk, as
except for United States Dollar (“US$”) denominated deposits
and prepayments for life insurance policies and Renminbi (“RMB”)
denominated bank balances, most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, the functional
currencies of the Group’s entities. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2022, if Hong Kong dollar had strengthened 5 percent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have been
approximately HK$2,504,000 (2021: Nil) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss on bank balances denominated
in RMB. If Hong Kong Dollar had weakened 5 percent against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been approximately HK$2,504,000 (2021: Nil)
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain on bank
balances denominated in RMB.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policies will not be performed as
US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of movements in exchange
rates between US$ and HKS$ is insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as those disclosed in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended
31 March 2022.

There was no formal plan authorised by the Board for any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this annual report.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2021: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2022.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 160 employees (2021: 170
employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers
in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and package of the Group’s
employees are periodically reviewed. Apart from the Mandatory
Provident Fund and in-house training programmes, salary increments
and discretionary bonuses may be awarded to the employees
according to the assessment of individual performance. The total
staff costs incurred by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2022 were approximately HK$69,290,000 (2021: approximately
HK$70,935,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
this annual report, save as disclosed in the following paragraph,
the Company has complied with all the code provisions, where
applicable, as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the board and chief executive (“CE”) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the Chairman of the Board. There is not a
post of the CE in the Company. The responsibilities of the Chairman
of the Board and the CE of the Company are currently taken up by
the Chairman of the Board and the other members of the Board. The
Board will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Group to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.
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THE BOARD
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group,
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of the composition of the Board and biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report in
the section of “Corporate Information” and on pages 51 to 57 of
this annual report in the section of “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”, respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in the
same industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and experience
to the Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors also
provide their independent professional judgments on the assessment
of the development, performance and risk management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy of which
the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of the Board.

BT EEZERBRAF @ 2021/22 F 4

EEg

BB

S RERAERERASKHE  URE
RAKEZER RRERKRR -BFECH
AEEZEAREEMNEENROINBEEER
TEREEE U EFENKIUESFE
EeYERZRFESFZEERTHRERA
BESEARNZSHEBE -

EXENAERTARE ZAXREARRE
TS HEREEREREMCESTZES - A
Nz Ee((FHNEZEe)) REEE
(R2aZ8e) hEZZEE ([EXRZXE
g (mBIE=EEREE]) -

ARREHFHBEERRZH  BEEERS
MEIEE R E QR XL M E R AEF
B REENSRABZEERREK -

#E R

EFCEMRALKEEANK  BEMENTE
ERZEZBUFNTEE - EFSHERNLE
EREEFBOFENAFREC2EIA[RAAE
B — SR A FRESIEETE [ EERERE
BIERERE]—f-

ExgABR - TEAEEEAKE XN
Az et BBEREXNHE  BARBER
MR &R RIFVE - BYIFRTE
ENRFEARNEE 2R  KBARAREE
REREFZBLEXHE -

Bl

EFELILEBR
ARACERMEFTSZTTIEBRR EFE%
TEEEZ T EAE MR - Fik - X
EHEER Bk BELR - MH
EREEH EFEXE —REAAKESTR
AEZE MEZRAZREUSBEER
BEREDEREZFSSTTLMNEE -




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEREREHE

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors. The following tables illustrate the diversity of the board
members as of the date of this annual report:

RAFHEEY EFEHAREFMAEK T
KPR EAFRANETERENZ T :

Age Group
FHRAE R
40 to 50 51 to 60
Name of Directors EEpnA 405% £505% 515% £605%
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) PREREE S A& (£ /) v
Mr. Guan Jingdong AR R A& v
Mr. Feng Zhidong SRR LA v
Professor Lu Haitian e g R 4
Mr. Liu Xin 2107 55 & v
Professional Experience
BEZR
Information Investment
technology/ consultancy
computing Banking and  Accounting and
engineering finance andlaw  accounting
EREN/ REZAR
Name of Directors EEfA ERIR RORBE gHRZEE it
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) BEELE(ZFE) v
Mr. Guan Jingdong BRRLE v
Mr. Feng Zhidong BERLE v/ v
Professor Lu Haitian B RAE v/
Mr. Liu Xin BT & /

Measurable Objectives and Selection

The Board will take opportunity to invite female members over time
to join the Board when selecting and making recommendation
on suitable candidates for Board appointments. The Board will
ensure that appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to having an
appropriate proportion of Directors who have direct experience in
the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, and
reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring
The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2022, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

FELAHEBR
HE-_ZT-—F=A=+—BILEE @5l
EFEgRERTREHE 2 ERBEAREHRS
HMZBITREFEN O

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BT eE8E
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee = Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE RHEZEE FMzEE RRBEF
Exgel L g3 L AE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Rongsheng RBELE 44 NIATER M NATER 11
Mr. Guan Jingdong BERELE 44 NATER  NATER  NATER 11

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUHTEE
Dr. Luo Tiejian'" BEEELIO 4/4 22 NATER 11 17
Professor Lu Haitian BEERHR 4/4 2/2 1/1 11 11
Mr. Liu Xin i 4/4 2/2 1/1 171 11
Mr. Feng Zhidong® BERLED N/AZNE A N/AT 38 N/AE A N/AZNE A N/ATE

1. Resigned on 1 June 2022 1. RZTEZZFA— AT

2. Appointed on 1 June 2022

RELATIONSHIP

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022
regarding appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has arranged
seminars for Directors as continuing professional trainings for
corporate governance and compliance purposes. Some Directors
also participated in other seminars according to their own
preferences.

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chen Rongsheng is the chairman of the Board who is responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the Group, including the
daily operations, business development and strategic planning. He
ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues raised
during Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back to the Board its decisions
or recommendations, unless there are any legal or regulatory
restrictions imposed on it.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) the appointment and
re-appointment of Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; (c) overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (d)
assessing the Group’s corporate governance functions. The full
version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Audit Committee is currently made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Feng Zhidong and Professor Lu Haitian. All members
of the Audit Committee possess the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required.

The Audit Committee held 2 committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2022.
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SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2022

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the Auditor, McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, (without the presence of the
Executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results for the
year ended 31 March 2021 and recommended the same to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee also held another meeting (without
the presence of the Executive Directors) to discuss and review the
Group’s results for the six months ended 30 September 2021 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

Other than the above, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discussed the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and
(d) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of three members
including Professor Lu Haitian (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chen Rongsheng and Mr. Liu Xin.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1)  reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(6) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need for an
additional Director or a member of senior management, the following
procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/ or
advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(3)  The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Nonexecutive
Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director to
allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of the
Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3. 13 of
the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of three members
including Mr. Liu Xin (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Feng Zhidong and Professor Lu Haitian.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2022

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting to review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

BREEETH

BB EE AT R Z SFRNESIEE 1.5 » &
BT HE-A=+—HIFERSHRE
BERES e EEy T :

Number of person(s)

Remuneration bands (HK$) FrNEE (BT A"
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,000 1
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,00122,500,000 1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly
reviews and monitors the training and continuing professional
development of Directors and the senior management, and ensures
its policies and practices in compliance with relevant laws and
regulatory requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2022,
the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the auditor, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, received HK$700,000 for provision of audit
service and HK$50,000 for provision of tax filing service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 69 to 76 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

In respect of code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA Function”). Although the
Company did not establish a standalone Internal Audit Department
during the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has put in place
adequate measures to perform the IA Function at different aspects
of the Group as the Company considers that close and regular
supervision by the Executive Directors and senior management, and
the maintenance of internal control guidance and procedures on
the Group’s critical operational cycles could provide sufficient and
effective internal control and risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures include
a management structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that assets are properly safeguarded against
misappropriations, transactions are executed in accordance with the
management’s authorisation, and accounting records are reliable
and proper for preparing financial information and are not materially
misstated. The procedure is designed to identify, evaluate and
manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of risk
management and internal control for the Group and the Board had
conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year ended
31 March 2022 through the Audit Committee. Same as last year’s
practice, the Company has engaged an external independent internal
control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control procedures
of the Group at both corporate level and business level (as agreed by
the Audit Committee). The review covered material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year ended 31 March 2022. The internal control
report has been circulated to the Audit Committee for review and
discussion. No significant areas of improvement which are required
to be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee have been
revealed.

As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the |A Function on an annual basis.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

° is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.
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Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Hui Wai Yue, the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) undertook no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography is set out on page 57
of this annual report in the section of “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no changes in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has recently announced
various amendments to the Listing Rules to implement the proposals
under the “Consultation Conclusion Paper on Listing Regime for
Overseas Issuers” published on 19 November 2021.

The amendments to the Listing Rules have already taken effect from
1 January 2022 and include the introduction of one common set
of core shareholder protection standards (set out in Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules) that will apply to all listed issuers to provide the
same level of protection to all investors. To conform with the core
shareholder protection standards, the Directors recommended that
the articles of association of the Company be amended. A proposal
on amending the articles of association and the adoption of a new
articles of association will be put forward at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and details of the proposed amendments will be set
out in the notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (THE “SHAREHOLDERS”) CAN
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, EGMs shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit 01, 82/F, International Commerce Centre, 1
Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles of
Association to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be advised
of this outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened
as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

o at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

o at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

THE PROCEDURES SHAREHOLDERS CAN
USE TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected including that person’s biographical details, shall
have been lodged to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Unit 01, 82/F, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
at least 7 days before the date of the general meeting. The
lodgement of notice should also be in compliance with the other
requirements of the Listing Rules.

THE PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

Any Shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/their
enquiries concerning the Company to the Board may deliver
his/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong with the address at Unit 01, 82/F,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or at any address notified by the Company from
time to time and for the attention of the chairman of the Board
and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Company would reply as soon as possible.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to be
paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, among others:

(1)  the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4)  the Group’s liquidity position;

(5) interest of shareholder;

(6) taxation consideration;

(7) potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of the
Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or basis
to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the
Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders
in a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our
environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) report for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (the “ESG Report”) for the purpose
of demonstrating our efforts on sustainable developments to our
stakeholders.

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts, namely
environmental and social.

The ESG Report basis of reporting principles — materiality, quantitative
and consistency:

° “Materiality” Principle: The Group determines material ESG
issues by stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.

° “Quantitative” Principle: Information is presented with
quantitative measure, whenever feasible, including information
on the standards, methodologies, assumptions used and
provision of comparative data.

° “Consistency” Principle: The Report will use consistent
methodologies for meaningful comparisons in the past years
unless improvements in methodology are identified.

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting boundary of this ESG Report
covers the principal businesses of the Group. We regularly review the
scope of the ESG Report to ensure that significant impacts to the
Group’s overall business portfolio are covered.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG issues.
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board, the management
and the ESG Working Team spent substantial time in evaluating the
impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation and formulating
ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The oversight of the
Board ensures that the management and the ESG Working Team can
have the right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues.

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s ESG strategies
and reporting, ensuring that the requirements set out by the Board
are met. Furthermore, the Board monitors and reviews the Group’s
compliance status of ESG-related laws and regulations by external
regulatory bodies, such as The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEX”). Regular Board meetings are hosted regularly to
help understanding the progress, targets and goals on ESG related
performances.

The management and the ESG Working Team is primarily responsible
for reviewing and supervising the ESG process and risk management
of the Group. ESG governance matters and ESG-related issues are
reviewed at the regular meeting during the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Board has identified potential and material issues to the business
and its stakeholders. The Board has also taken part in the Materiality
assessment as one of the key stakeholders of the Company in
providing constructive opinions on the materiality of ESG issues.
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the year, the Group has evaluated a number of environmental,
social and operation related issues, and assessed their importance to
stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
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MAJOR RECOGNITIONS
ENVIRONMENTAL

ISO 50001: 2018
Energy Management
System

BEREERA

SOCIAL

ISO 45001: 2018*
Occupational Health and
afety Management System
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ISO 140001: 2015*
Environmental

Management System
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ISO 9001: 2015*

Quality Management System
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting from
our business activities.
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To minimise the adverse environmental impacts concerning our site
activities, we shall:

° Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

o Prevent, reduce and eliminate pollution or any other degradation
of environment resulting from the production process or from
the use of goods and services.

° Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources.

° Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material in
our design and construction process.

° Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in an
environmentally responsible manner.

° Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

° Obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses,
registrations and permits.

° Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors.
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Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and
implementation.

Commit to continual improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group’s environmental management system has been accredited
by Accredited Certification International Limited with ISO 14001 :

2015 and ISO 50001

. 2018 certifications.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations:

a.

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

BT EEZERBRAF @ 2021/22 F 4
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A(l) EMISSIONS A(l) BERR 9

EMISSIONS B

()  Since the Group did not consume town gas fuel and town gas () HMREBEE-_E-_—_F=A=+—HItF
during the year ended 31 March 2022, therefore no emission JE 7N & B0 OB R R IR -
data is available. fma AR -

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nitrogen Oxides (i) REBEZ-_ZET-_—_F=A=+—HILF
(NOx), Sulfur Oxides (SOx), and Particulate Matter (PM) emitted B AKBABEHROAALY  HE
from the consumption of the Group’s motor vehicles are shown bV R EEWRAT -
as below:

2022 2021
emission emission Increase

—E-CF —ET-_—F
BHE HEmE #n

(approximately (approximately
in gram) in gram) Percentage
Types of Emissions R zESE (=) (#952) Batk
NOx A&y 55.9 1,092.1 (94.9)
SOx meatyw 33,571.8 32,081.5 4.6
PM =2 4.1 80.4 (94.9)

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group are mainly ZAEEHEAERE(EERE DRI EE
generated from electricity and petrol consumed. The Group always 4B EENSHRAH AEE —BEHH
aims to reduce waste and minimise the consumption of electricity in =~ B BEEY R ZEHIRAS  URRAER
order to tackle GHG emissions issue. BEHE L RE -
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The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended T XF REMREBE_TE-_—_F=A=+—

31 March 2022, HIEFERNRED -
2022 2021 Increase/
Emission Emission (decrease)
—E-= —E-—4F
HHE HEmE #m/ CRd)
(approximately (approximately
in tonnes in tonnes
of CO,) of CO,) Percentage
(=& (Z&bhx
Scope of GHG BERBZEE HE 4 WE ) B4 WA E) Bk
Scope 1 - direct emission E—®E —FEERD 5,465.4 4,336.6 26.0
Scope 2 - indirect emission FE_@E — MEERD 112.3 261.3 (57.0)
Scope 3 - other indirect emission & = &3 — H b fE & H A 260.7 1,954.2 (86.7)
Total (a) 3t (a) 5,838.4 6,552.1 (10.9)
Total average floor area BYHEHEE
(approximately in m2) (b) (ERREE) () 65,354 56,915 14.8
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) BE(Z&ime/
(d)=(a)/(b) 1K) (d)=(@)/(o) 0.1 0.1 -

The Group has previously set the amount of GHG emission for the AEBEEfHEEHEE T -_—F=HA=+—H

=

year ended 31 March 2022 to 7,000 tonnes. The Group has achieved  |FFEHE = REH M E ] A7,0000 7N &

this target during the year. ERFEANCEILEE -
HAZARDOUS WASTE BERERY

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business B ESZFT/RA - BFIBEERPNESRNET

does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during our B2 W RBELEFAERGEZEEY) -
construction process.

BT EBEZER AR DA @ 2021/22 F 4
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the
year ended 31 March 2022, the total construction waste disposed of
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 40,242 tonnes
(2021: 172,840 tonnes) and approximately 212,730 kg (2021:
190,620 kg) respectively. Our Group always tries our best to recycle
practicable construction material in our design and construction
process.
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mEEZEY

BAAEEMERMEE  ERMAEITAREF
CELERTREEEZEY BEFEVNES
RfEHERRKEENERKZK - HEZZ
T CFZAZT—HILEFE EERHER
MHEENERBBNEEFEEZENRES A
#940,242MF (= ZT — —F : 172,840M8) K& %)
212,730 T % (ZZF = —% : 190,620T ) °
ERMHOSRT RETIBET  NE@m—H8
B AT AR EEN R -

CONTRIBUTION TO GREEN BUILDINGS

Most of our customers had registered as BEAM (Building Environment
Assessment Method) Plus for their new building projects. Being one
of the contractors, we actively seek opportunities to increase our
contribution on the green building projects. We closely work with
clients to support their projects in attaining the target BEAM Plus
rating. The Group also encourages our employees to undertake
trainings on green building to enable the Group to contribute more in
the area of green building in the future.

BB
BPARZEEFEREMELEIAR BLBEAM
(BERFETHIE)Plus o fERE R — B EE
B RMAEES ke /RERBEELES
ARl - RPBEZFPEUAE XHHEBFER
5 B 12BEAM Plusit 4l - AEETeEERE 2
MagEF - S AKEBRAERERNS
tERRL °
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The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust A&EBEINE FHEE T i 58 7 8RB K
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our R{EFWNATE » B B 8 EE 4% B 4K
construction sites. B o

Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly 4 @ AEBEMHE FTHELBERZEHES
purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of — EJH4 2SR &9 & B BBIAERHE BUIZ 2 -
Stage lIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there is no #I¥EM s REFFMEHM  REEZ—ZT - —
material non-compliance with the applicable rules and regulations F=A=+—HItFEE  RAABEAHFEILT
relating to air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land discharges, EFREZXERTEER A= REEHEM - B
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in all material 7K 7 K 4 31 5E 55 A &?Eﬁ%&ﬁ%@ﬁ
aspects during the year ended 31 March 2022. YRR R A AR R ARG -

BT EBEZER AR DA @ 2021/22 F 4
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A(Il)USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policies and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and
treated for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction
process. In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the energy consumption by REZ-_E-_—_F=A=+—HILFE K

type in total of the Group are showed as below: SEELEBEBEYNEFRERRLSYRNT
2022 usage 2021 usage Increase/
—EC-CE —E-—F Unit/total (decrease)
EHE fHAE  floor areas* i,/ (D)
Direct/Indirect BEi/HE (approximately)  (approximately) B/ Percentage
Energy by Type BERZES (#) (%) 484 tth T RE* BA
O iy 371.5 407.8 KWh/m? (8.9)
TRE/FAK
Electricity &N 3.2 8.5 KWh/m? (62.4)
FRE/FHK
* Total floor area was 65,354 m2 in 2022 (2021: 56,915 m?) * —E - F@E(hwEE A63,354F F K (ZF

——% : 56,915 HK)

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within ~ RNEE —E R AEBANSRELEM[ 4 E ]
our Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further IRIRIES - BEEFBE—FTEERNTX[E
disclosed in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources” 18N KARER]—&

below.

The Group has previously set the amount of consumption (i.e. oil AEEBEEREFHEHEE T -_—F=HA=+—H
consumed) for the year ended 31 March 2022 to 400 kWh/m?. The  |E&FE i EFEE (BIFTERE S RH) 57 4400
Group has achieved this target during the year. TR/ FHK AEBRFRDEDIE

BT EBEZER AR DA 2021/22 F 4
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TOTAL PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Due to the business nature of our Group, we do not use packaging
material for finished products.

A(ITHE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal negative
impact to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
(include design, review, monitoring performance) as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Comply with the environmental aspects of the applicable legal
requirements and the other requirements to which the Group
subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles throughout
our business; and

° Continual improvement.
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The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within ~ AEB T EF B N HHE A AEBRNKHH
our Group mainly through the following measures: BREEI&E] S

° Office power saving: Turn off lights and air-conditioning when
not in use and log off computer and turn off the screen when
not in use or during lunch hours.

e WMAEHEE REFEARBLLRAEHEESEREZHLNE
FEAERK RN FREFDE L EM L EEHABRTE

o Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for
document review purposes, reduction in printing and use of
recycled paper.

e HIHNAE: ERAEBREMERRGREIUT - RAFIENLE
FATEER UL

o Reduction of the usage of bottled water: Use reusable cups to
reduce the use of plastic bottles.

o RAERBEK : EAAHFRAKKAERDERRBE

BT EEZERER AT 2021/22 %R
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o LED T8 lamps: Installation of LED T8 lamps phase by phase for
environmental protection purpose.

o T8LEDE : DEERLTHTS LEDE AZEBIRIRME

° Noise control: Site work hours restricted to 7:00 a.m. to
7:00 p.m. (except for those construction sites being granted
construction noise permit).

o Sound level meters are used in construction sites to monitor
the noise level.

° Install noise barriers in construction sites to reduce the level of
noise during construction.

e REEH:HWBTFERAREST L7THIERMR L7 IE (5]
MRERRERZFFAERI) -

e RUBRARIAERRIE -
o RHUBLEREFEUEEEIRNRIKF -

A(IV)CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is committed to establishing climate resilience in the face
of climate change. We have assessed and evaluated the potential
climate physical and transitional risks to understand the climate risks
that we may face and the effects on the Group’s business.

The potential risk is that the physical assets and business operation
may be affected by extreme weather. For example, floods may occur
in construction sites, which may lead to larger expenses for the repair
and maintenance of physical assets and recovery of the construction
operation. The Group, as a responsible enterprise, is committed to
implement relevant measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
from business operations.

To cope with adverse weather conditions, the Group takes
precautionary and protective measures which include work schedule
rearrangement and redeployment of resources, to ensure the safety of
the employees, to minimize the negative impact on business process
and to avoid any physical damages to the assets of the Group.
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B. SOCIAL

B(l) EMPLOYMENT
EMPLOYMENT

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2022, the Group had 5 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we
did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, work
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
work environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.

BT EEZERBRAF 2021/22 F 4
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 160 (2021: 170) employees. RZZE-_-F=A=+—H  XEFHF160%

Most of the Group’s employees are foundation workers in Hong Kong. ZE—F:170%)EBE - AEEKXH DR
Below are certain key charts in relation to our employment aspects. BEABAMETA -UTAEERSIEMAE

2022 Employee distribution by gender
TECCFRMEBESZEILSH
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oy

2022 Employee distribution by age
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2021 Employee distribution by gender
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B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY

B(l) BRERZZE

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safe work
environment which maintains a high standard of safety, health and
welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measures to
protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and to
take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to the
nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded
as the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded zero reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: 3).

BT EEZERBRAF 2021/22 F 4
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The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) poses a huge
challenge to health in Hong Kong. The Group has implemented the
following measures to protect our staff:

- All public area will be disinfected regularly;

- Provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;

- Request each staff to report their health status everyday;

- Provide flexible work hours for staff to avoid crowd; and

- Request each Department Head to monitor the health status of

its staff regularly.

The occupational health and safety data are set out below:

2021
—EC-—F
Male Female
Health and Safety BEEZE B peg i3
Number of work-related HE LT #H R &
fatalities 0% 0%
Lost days due to work B T {53k K18 &
injury R 365 -

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SAFETY TRAINING
Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions.

Our Safety Department is responsible for advising and assisting
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety
information and training.

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with
our policy and safety procedures.

To ensure our Safety Policy is well implemented, we will provide
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action,
including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety
policy and requirements.

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel
positively implement the Safety Policy and make every effort to meet
the target of zero accident.
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Our Corporate Safety Management Committee updates our Safety
Policy annually in accordance with the latest legislation and safety
regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system has
been certified in compliance with ISO 45001 : 2018 by Accredited
Certification International Limited.

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group provided not
less than 16,000 trainings hours to our employees, especially for
occupational safety trainings.

HIET EE IR AR A A 2021/22 &3}
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B(IV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.

B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has been assessed and certified by Accredited
Certification International Limited that our quality management
system, which governs our daily operation for quality control and
improvement, had met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 :
2015.

All potential new suppliers and subcontractors must pass our rigorous
evaluation. A screening process will be undertaken in regard to their
product and service quality, company licenses, accreditations, and
other qualifications to ensure they are qualified and compliant will our
standards.

Furthermore, an annual performance evaluation is in place for our
existing business partners to assess their qualifications, product
quality, delivery time, after-sales service, and other factors are taken
into account.

The Group is committed to supporting ethical procurement practices.
When generating purchase orders, we will take into account the
product’s environmental criteria in order to protect the health of
the end-users and avoid negative environmental consequences.
Supplier’s and service providers’ environmental management
systems, policies, and compliance status are assessed using a unique
environmental performance evaluation form. To avoid harming the
environment, the Group is also committed to prohibiting the use of
non-environmentally friendly items.

The geographical distribution of suppliers are set out below:

By Location 1% ith B
Hong Kong o
Mainland China B A3
Other countries Hh B xR
Total st
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The Group also holds regular visit for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by the suppliers and work performed
by the subcontractors.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
have been formally notified and required to comply with our policy and
safety procedure.

The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(Vl) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation services
in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and services we provide have
limited relationship with advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the
Group is highly committed to delivering to our customers quality
services in foundation designs, providing professional advices and
making appropriate adjustments. We will tackle any issue raised by
our customers by rectifying it within a reasonable time and ensuring
our customers’ satisfaction.

DATA PRIVACY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights. We have marketed our business in Hong
Kong using @ as our trademark which was properly registered in
Hong Kong in 2015. The Group will only use lawful software licenses
for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in our staff
manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential information.
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B(Vil) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of our
staff.

A formal Whistle-blowing Policy has been adopted in the second
quarter of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group yet to provide
its employees approximately 4 hours of any training in relation to
anti-corruption.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or our
staff during the year ended 31 March 2022.

B(VII) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
donated to certain charitable events held by The Hong Kong Breast
Cancer Foundation.

As a family-friendly employer, we always show our kindness and care
to our staff. There are written policies in our staff manual, including the
education sponsorship program to our staff, a long service award to
staff who have worked for over 5 years, a continuous 6 days’ paternity
leave for each confinement of our male staff’s spouse/partner, a
continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for our staff, a birthday leave for
our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave for our staff
for social responsibilities purposes.

In order to comply with anti-epidemic measures, the Group did not
hold any corporate events during the year ended 31 March 2022.
Instead, the Group distribute gifts and coupons to its staff at various
festivals.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (“Mr. Chen”), aged 52, is an entrepreneur
in the PRC with his business and investment involved in various
sectors which include integrated circuit card and electronic labels,
e-commerce, fintech and virtual game platform. He obtained an
EMBA Degree jointly awarded by the National Taiwan University
in Taiwan and the Fudan University in the PRC in January 2014.
Mr. Chen has more than 17 years of experience in information
technology. He has worked in New Doone Technology Company
Limited* (FTERMWEIFL AR A A, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tatwah Smartech Company Limited (f@NZEZEZ LRI BMD AR
‘AA]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002512) and is principally engaged in the development of
radiofrequency identification technology such as integrated circuit
cards and electronic labels since 2001 with his current position as
the chief executive officer. Since 2014, Mr. Chen has been appointed
as a director and the chief executive of Tatwah Smartech Company
Limited. Mr. Chen also invests in companies which are principally
engaged in e-commerce, fintech or virtual game platform in the PRC.

Mr. Guan Jingdong (“Mr. Guan”), aged 58, has over 26 years
of experience in banking and finance. He obtained a Bachelor of
Finance and Taxation Degree from the Heilongjiang University in
the PRC in December 2003. In April 1993, he joined the Branch
Credit Management Department of China Everbright Bank. Later in
February 2001, he was promoted to the position of assistant of the
branch general manager. He was further promoted to the position
of vice branch general manager in January 2002. In March 2009 he
served as the branch general manager until July 2014 when he left
China Everbright bank. After leaving China Everbright Bank, he was
employed by Runxing Financial Leasing Company Limited* (% gk
EHEER A 7)) as the vice president from July 2014 to November
2017. From October 2017 to April 2018 he worked in Tatwah
Smartech Company Limited* ({ ILI3ZZE L e R B AR AR A 7)) as the
vice president.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Feng Zhidong (“Mr. Feng”), aged 48, obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1995 and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the South China University of Technology in
the PRC in February 2004. Mr. Feng has also completed a Mergers
and Acquisitions Executive Program from the Business School of
Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC in March 2015 and a Global
Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC School of Finance at
the Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 2019. In addition, Mr. Feng
has obtained a Certificate of Specialty and Technology (Intermediate
Level) in Accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in May 1999.

Mr. Feng has more than 22 years of experience in financial
management, capital operations and managing investor relations.
Since June 2016, Mr. Feng is the chairman of the board and a
director of Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd.,
which is principally engaged in internet parking services. Moreover,
since August 2018, he is the chairman of the board and a director
of Guangzhou Yueting Capital Management Co., Ltd., which
is principally engaged in parking management and corporate
management service.

Mr. Feng was a deputy general manager of the Capital Department
of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited from December 2009 to
July 2016. He was also a general manager of the Investor Relations
Department of a group company of Yuexiu Property Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 123) from April 2012 to April 2016. Mr. Feng was an
independent non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as LEAP Holdings Group Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499), a
company principally engaged in the provision of foundation works and
ancillary services from August 2015 to November 2017. Mr. Feng has
been an independent non-executive director of Xingye Wulian Service
Group Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9916) since 17 September 2019.
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Professor Lu Haitian (“Prof. Lu”), aged 42, has over 16 years
of experience in accounting and law. He obtained a Bachelor of
International Economic Law Degree from the Nanjing University in the
PRC in June 2001, a Master of Laws Degree from the University of
Liverpool in the United Kingdom in December 2002, and a Doctor of
Philosophy from the National University of Singapore in June 2007.
He served at the School of Accounting and Finance in the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University first as a visiting lecturer in law from September
2005 to June 2007, Assistant professor in law from June 2007 to
June 2012, Associate Professor in law from July 2012 to June 2018,
and Professor in law since July 2018. Since January 2018, Prof. Lu
has been appointed as the Associate Dean (External Relations and
Development) in the Facility of Business of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Prof. Lu has been appointed the director of Chinese
Mainland Affairs Office since February 2020.

Prof. Lu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as Melcolot
Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8198) since
July 2017.

Mr. Liu Xin (“Mr. Liu”), aged 44, has over 19 years of experience
in investment consultancy and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor
of Accountancy Degree from the Jinan University in the PRC in June
2001. He worked in PriceWaterhouseCoopers for 8 years with his
last position as the senior manager in the Advisory Department. He
then served in Shanghai Fosun High Technology (Group) Company
Limited* (E/8EE25RHE (5£B8) BRAF]) (a subsidiary of Fosun
International Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 656)) from July 2011 to September 2015 as the chief financial
officer of Fosun Kinzon Capital. From October 2015 to February
2019, he was the chief operating officer and a member of the
investment committee of Shoreline Capital Management Ltd. Since
March 2019, he has been the chief operating officer of Vision Plus
Capital. Mr. Liu is a registered accountant of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul (“Mr. Yu”), aged 72, is an executive director
of a major subsidiary of our Group, K. H. Foundations Limited (the
“K. H. Foundations”). He is primarily responsible for overseeing the
marketing work and contract strategy of the K. H. Foundations and
is appointed as an authorised signatory under specialist contractor
licensing. Mr. Yu has also been appointed as the Technical Director
to act for the purpose of the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for K. H. Foundations. He has over 40 years of
experience in the foundation, construction and engineering industry
in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu founded K. H. Foundations in 1985 and has
been a director of K. H. Foundations since then. Over the 35 years
of directorship in K. H. Foundations, Mr. Yu had the opportunity to
go through various development and construction projects of both
the public sector and the private sector in Hong Kong including, but
not limited to schools, hotels, infrastructure projects and Government
buildings.

Mr. Yu graduated from the Syracuse University in New York, the
United States and obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering
and a Master’s Degree in Engineering Administration in May 1973
and December 1974, respectively. In 1981, Mr. Yu was a director of
the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and was subsequently elected as
chairman of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in 1988 and served as
the chairman until 1989.
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Mr. Yu was appointed by the Hong Kong Government to sit in various
advisory bodies since 1982. He was appointed as a member of the
Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries from
1982 to 2003, a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board from
1992 to 1996, a member of the Registered Contractors’ Disciplinary
Board Panel from 1993 to 1996, a member of the Council of the
Hong Kong Institute of Education from 1994 to 1998, a member of
the Administrative Appeals Board from 1994 to 2000, a member
of the Hospital Authority from 2001 to 2009, the chairman of the
Hospital Governing Committee of the Tuen Mun Hospital from 2004
to 2014 and a member of the Advisory Board of the Tung Wah Group
of Hospitals until 2019. Currently, he is a member of the Hospital
Governing Committee of Queen Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital.
He was awarded Justice of the Peace (Non-official) by the Hong Kong
Government in 1989 and is a member in the Most Excellent Order of
the British Empire in 1994. In 2007, Mr. Yu was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong Government. He was admitted as a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Builders and the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers in May 1997.

He is currently an independent non-executive director of Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00513), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 55, is an
executive director of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Yeung is primarily
responsible for overseeing the overall management of the K. H.
Foundations, including daily operations, business development,
strategic planning and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 20 years
of experience in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He took part
in the foundation works and superstructure construction works in
construction projects of both the public sector and the private sector
in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools, hotels, residential
premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in
2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during the
same period. He is also the director of K. H. Civil Engineering Limited,
K. H. Machinery Limited and K. H. Piling & Engineering Limited since
each of their incorporation date, respectively. He has been appointed
as a director of Tactful Building Company Limited (“Tactful”) since
July 1998. Tactful is a Registered General Building Contractor, and is
mainly involved in building construction works.
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Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Professional Diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
Degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’s Degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession. He
was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992.

Ms. Chan Lai Kuen (“Ms. Chan”), aged 58, is an executive
director of K. H. Foundations. Ms. Chan is primarily responsible
for overseeing the finance and account management aspects and
as well as the corporate finance functions in K. H. Foundations.
Ms. Chan has over 20 years of experience in accounting, taxation and
financial assignments especially with companies in the Hong Kong
construction industry. Ms. Chan joined our Group in 2006 and was
appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during the same period.

Ms. Chan was the assistant accountant of Wing Fai International
Limited from 1994 to 1998 and has been the accountant of Tactful
since 1998. She is currently a senior accounting manager of Tactful.
Tactful is a Registered General Building Contractor, and is mainly
involved in building construction works.

Ms. Chan obtained her Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy from the
City Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as The City University of
Hong Kong) in November 1992. She is a Certified Public Accountant
and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2000. She has also been a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 2004.
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Mr. Wong Wai Nam (“Mr. Wong”), aged 59, serves as the general
manager of K. H. Foundations. He is responsible for overseeing the
technical designs of foundation works and technical department of K.
H. Foundations. Mr. Wong joined our Group as director — technical
in March 2014 and has over 30 years of experience in the foundation,
construction and engineering industry. Mr. Wong obtained a Higher
Certificate in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1986.
Mr. Wong became a Registered Structural Engineer in Hong Kong in
August 2000 and a registered inspector in Hong Kong in May 2012.
He has been admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since September 1998 and as a Chartered Engineer
of the Institution of Structural Engineers, the United Kingdom, since
February 1998. Mr. Wong was employed as technical director of
Meinhardt (C&S) Limited from 1992 to 2014. Mr. Wong was previously
employed in the foundation construction and engineering consultants
with several companies and the Housing Department, the executive
arm of the Hong Kong Housing Authority between 1983 and 1992.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hui Wai Yue (“Ms. Hui”), aged 45, has over 20 years of
experience in company secretarial and tax services industry. She
obtained a Bachelor of Accountancy in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 1999. She worked as the Tax Accountant |
in the Tax Department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
1999 to May 2000. She was then employed by PKF Hong Kong (an
audit firm) as Tax Manager from May 2000 to August 2011 and was
transferred to PKF Tax and Business Consultants Limited as tax
director in September 2011 until her resignation in 2014. Since June
2016 she has been employed by MCGI Consultancy Limited as its
principal in the company secretarial and tax services department.
Ms. Hui is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 11
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this Directors’
Report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting from
our business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group will also review
its environmental policies and performance from time to time in order
to minimise the adverse environmental impacts from our operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent work
environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in order to
maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

Save as those disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no other material dispute or argument
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers and
subcontractors during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 28 to 50 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned, there were
no material breaches of or non-compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations by our Group that have significant impacts on the
business and operations of our Group during the year ended 31
March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 27.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2022 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 171.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 172 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted,
pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 February 2016 which became
effective and unconditional upon the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2016, for the purpose of
providing incentive and/or to reward eligible participants (who include
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisors, consultants, other
contractors, business partners of the Group) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group. Unless
otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force for
10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as from the
date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 40,000,000 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date. The overall
limit on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of not less
than 5 business days. HK$1 shall be payable by the participants on
acceptance of the offer of the Scheme.
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The exercisable period of the share options granted is determinable
by the board of directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. The subscription price for the shares in respect
of which options are granted is determinable by board of directors,
but shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of
the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2022,
calculated under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to approximately HK$65,256,000 (2021: approximately
HK$71,014,000). The share premium account of the Company is
available for distribution or paying dividends to the Shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts immediately as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 86.7% of the Group’s total revenue
and revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 25.7% of the Group’s total revenue during the
year ended 31 March 2022. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 73.3% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 84.5% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the largest
supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the largest subcontractor of
the Group accounted for approximately 36.3% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 60.8% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2022 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)
Mr. Guan Jingdong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Luo Tiejian (resigned on 1 June 2022)
Professor Lu Haitian

Mr. Liu Xin

Mr. Feng Zhidong (appointed on 1 June 2022)
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Feng Zhidong who was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 June 2022,
will retire and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Rongsheng and Mr. Guan Jingdong will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
18.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 51 to 57 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles of Association, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622)) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year and as at the date of approval of this Directors’
report, pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the
Director in connection with any legal proceedings in which he is
involved by reason of being a Director, and in which the judgement
is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted. The Company has
maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out
of corporate activities.

EEERNEE
9 R 8 AR 48_E T AR BUS513.51B(1) 5 T A
W -

EEREREEEBEREHR

BERARASREEEZHAEHNERS
S1E57TAEZ [EENEREEEBREBE] 5 -

EENRBEN

BERNEERREFAS LEEEENE
SEARARGFIAETAAATBEARARRN—FA
AR B A S FE R CREMER N 1
RIBEH -

EE M

EEFMEFBRRNERAS L1E - Hib
FMOREFE2EEECRAE  AERRK
BAURAEBZXEMEE - EFNEE—
T _HF A=+ —BLEFEZHFMNFBH
REFEM BRI 14 -

EEFFRE

REABERMAR REARAEZTERSE
EHEER ARA-—EBEREENMNAIA
BREEFNBEGR CEELEBENF
622% (X A & Bl ) 5B4691%) - Bt - WAL
EZNE=HMH P MNEMERERFMBRE
MEL  IXBREAERS - LEHBF
HEF AARBERERNZZFEL  BX
X BEEHRES AQFACDKRBRR
REBEREEENSRABRACEEHM
CEERSREEABRBERTHZEL -

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party
Transactions” in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of associated (ii)

corporation

RIBEZBEERNETR

Name of associated

Number of Percentage of
shares held shareholding
in associated in associated

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest corporation corporation
IR E LR EE
= HEEENER EatE FrsRoOEE RETDL
Mr. Chen Sendlink Limited Interest in a controlled 1 100%
corporation
BeR 5 4 Sendlink Limited XA E
Mr. Chen (Note) Blessing Well Beneficial owner 1 100%
PR S A (i EE) B EnEEA
Note: 5T

These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Hence, Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As Sendlink Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, consequently, Mr. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

THE COMPANY
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As at 31 March 2022, the following interests and short positions of RZEZZF=A=+—H ' U TARER

5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Blessing Well Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%
&= EmlEA A
Sendlink Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
Sendlink Limited (H#1) XEEE#ER
Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

Mr. Chen (Note 2)
BR ot 4 (Bifat2)
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Notes:

1 These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

2: These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Sendlink Limited is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As Sendlink Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company through Sendlink Limited and Blessing Well under
the SFO. Mr. Chen is not a concert party under the Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other than
the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure
of Interests” in this annual report, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
40 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has
been entered into or existed during the year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as those disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, there are no other material events occurring after 31
March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2022 (the “2022 AGM”) is scheduled to be held on Friday, 30
September 2022. A notice convening the 2022 AGM will be issued
and disseminated to the Shareholders in due course.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued capital are held by public as at the date of this
annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group made charitable
contribution totalling HK$20,000 (2021: HK$138,000).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited shall retire in the 2022
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited as Auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chen Rongsheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

1B M % BLED ]

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H. Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FAREXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional MBEREEXZ=EABEBEES 2 EZEHHE - R A
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ¥ AHE 4G AP BREC ERRABEE LS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were T - ZEZEHENESSERERBEATHHRE
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial KHEEREERE MES feYZS=RE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we RNz ER - ESHA 2 BARERZEE
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit 7 :

matters we identified are:

b

1) Revenue and profit recognition for construction contracts; and 1) BEASYHZWRZ R &FER: Kk

2)  Provision for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables 2) #EBZEKRFKERAHNEENELSEE

and contract assets

EBE(EREEBR] HERE

Key Audit Matter
ERERSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTPEERRERSENG E

Revenue and profit recognition for construction
contracts

BESHN WS RERER

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note
4(g), critical judgements and key estimates in notes
5(a) and 5(c) and relevant disclosure in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

LR & IR A EX EFBE - BT iE5(a)%
5(c)E ZEHk R+ ZRE LM F 7166 1% 7

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$707,392,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
HE_T_—_F=A=+—HIEFE X EBEEBREE
$EE K 2 W #) /707,392,000 7T ©

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the input method based on direct measurements
of the contract costs incurred to value the contract work
performed.
SRAREERABAZEREEELESNKNAEE TK
EHNIRBENEEASHRREZELER -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation of revenue and profit recognition for
construction contracts included:

E%ﬁﬁﬁ%EE%HE%%%@ZH&E&%‘&%F&%ZE%@

- obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
BREETEERETZE Lim BSAEEESHH
BITRBRZT M

= corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such
as customers’ correspondence;
FRBLSIHINERE (PINEFBEAM EEEEENT

2

= examining, on samples basis, the contracts and
certifications of work performed;
NHEELEBRESORE TR TEERE

- performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;
MRESEFNRTETAERSE :

- discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

AR T RREIRE S AR RIEBIK AN 2 (5
UA R 3838 2 R A 5T e E 1 89 72 17 I H Ath (A 72 [ B A
EMarhEREROANERR
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Key Audit Matter
BREXRSZE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEBERTERERRERSENS E

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
and profit recognition involves a significant degree of
judgement made by management, with estimates being
made to:

HREB2EAMNE - BB EAM WS Rk F ERIED
BERRBEZHE WA TEFEELRR

- assess the total contract costs;

AHA RS IR

- assess the stage of completion of the contract;
AR 2 TERPE R

- assess the revenue and costs associated with
variation orders;

AR TR E AR 2 Wk R

- appropriately provide for liquidated damages for
delays in completion of the construction works;
and
MERTHEEIEZENSIEFLEERE &

- appropriately provide for loss making contracts.

LB R A OIFHEE B

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %

comparing the percentage of completion for
contracts to the proportion of contract costs for
works performed to date bear to the total estimated
contract costs;

2EZ25E TR IR KA R BMATTSE LKA
LEBILE R & AT B S

using the knowledge obtained from the above testing,
assessing whether provisions for liquidated damages
or loss making contracts made by management were
appropriate; and

ERE bR ER RN HEEEERENS XK
BREANIFLZBERERE &

assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”.

NHEELEF AR IREETRANGORERENE
EEMNBHRELENF ISR [ZLPANKEINERRFT
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Key Audit Matter
ERERSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEBERTERERRERSENS E

Provision for ECL on trade receivables and
contract assets

RESEUREREGNEENRNGFEBRITRERE

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note 4(t),

critical judgements and key estimates in note 5(e) and

relevant disclosure in notes 6(b), 21 and 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

B E AN 40 EX S5 R - M 7Eo(e)q)
ZHETR F ZEZURNF60b) - 21 R226) 1665 1% 75 °

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade receivables and contract
assets were approximately HK$94,672,000 (net of
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$417,000)
and HK$283,789,000 (net of allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$4,583,000) respectively.
RZBEZZF=A=+—HX' EBE5EBZEKRFIE
kaf&ENREESD 5 A494,672,000/8 7T (£ bk
T8 Hi{E B B 18 B 5 49417,0007% JT) 283,789,000/ 7T
(MR TREE B BB B H#4,5683,0008 7T) °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant judgement
and estimate made by the directors in determining the
provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets.
HREFGRKRIBEREHNEEN CREZES M EHmE
MEBEAREERECEZRKRERGHNEEN
REEEEERERTIEEERAE R HESH
FPREEHNRBAREZER -

Our procedures in relation to the provision for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets included:
EEHEBESERRERGHNEENTHANCEF AT RE
FEHEEAZEFEE

- Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over credit
control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;

- FHMAREEET  EREN REHEEERGLAE
MRS N EBIE I R ET - MATIBR KIEITR ¢

- With the assistance of auditor’s expert, assessing
the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models by
examining the model input used by management to
form such judgements, including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information including the economic variables and
assumptions used in each of the economic scenarios
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising ECL;

- EREMERNHGET  ERARREEERTKEH
HEFTEHAER B ABRATG EXEEHEES
BRANSEN  ERAIGBEENSENERT
AHEEEEERE D ERE AT BN & ATHE &
(BREEKLESSNEANKESEE RMER) BEFHE

KRR ENRETEEEN A REEEE
I HH BRI KR

- Examining settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2022; and

- BERU_ZT—_F-A=T—"HWNESEKFEK
BREENVREFEEREBNEEBR &

- Assessing the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the Group’s credit
risk exposure.

-  TEREEMBHRRAELNE BHEEFEERREK
AAERE R R 58 -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information include in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6633

24/F., Siu On Centre,
188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeEBEREMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE_Z-__F=A=+—RHIFE

2022 2021
—E-F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT TA&TT
Revenue W 2% 7 751,767 933,797
Cost of sales and services rendered  $5E K P12 (RS A & (722,019) (892,144)
Gross profit EF 29,748 41,653
Other income H U A 8 8,084 12,699
Administrative and other operating ITHE R B A48 & 5
expenses (46,441) (43,626)
Provision for expected credit loss LB 5 EUGRIE - E e UK
ECL”) on trade receivables, other EHRAEHEENTEREES
receivables and contract assets, net B ([FBHIEEEIE])
of reversal of impairment loss AR E - MR BEEE
gl (910) (2,142)
(Loss)/profit from operations BE TS (BR) A (9,519) 8,584
Finance costs A A A 10 (8,825) (7,513)
(Loss)/profit before tax MRBLAT (B518) & F (18,344) 1,071
Income tax expense Fr 5%t 2 11 2) —
(Loss)/profit and total KATEEAEBEER
comprehensive income for the (BE) BRI R2E RS
year attributable to owners of the #%8
Company 12 (18,346) 1,071
HK cents HK cents
0 AL
(Loss)/earnings per share sR(ER) &R
— Basic — HAR 16(a) (4.6) 0.3
— Diluted — BE 16(b) N/ATiE F N/AT i A

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %




»” CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &R

As at 31 March 2022
RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-_F —_EF - —
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FExT TA&TT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment I - e R 17 41,282 42 158
Deposits and prepayments for life ASRBRENZES K
insurance policies SEENE ] 18 19,163 9,274
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 19 11,451 19,521
71,896 70,953
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 20,364 6,024
Trade receivables =) A& L 21 94,672 81,624
Contract assets BHEE 22 283,789 309,034
Prepayments, deposits and TENHIE Ze Rk
other receivables E 1 W 5008 23 61,016 172,504
Pledged bank deposits B IIRITFER 24 68,385 36,353
Bank and cash balances SR1TRIE & 6k 24 57,898 6,400
586,124 611,939
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and retention payables B o REMNFRIBENMEMRESR 25 240,570 372,025
Contract liabilities BHAE 22 - 2,112
Accruals and other payables FEET & B & H fb e 5OE 26 60,560 13,316
Lease liabilities HEBME 27 7,441 9,976
Bank borrowings, secured SRITIEF - B 28 181,027 97,154
489,598 494,583
Net current assets RBEEFEE 96,526 117,356
Total assets less current BWEERRBERE
liabilities 168,422 188,309
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEMBMRR R

As at 31 March 2022
R-ZZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-F T —%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FExT FET
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 387 1,928
Other borrowing, unsecured H g 58 0 EmE A 29 92,894 92,894
93,281 94,822
NET ASSETS EEFE 75,141 93,487
Capital and reserves EXRfFEE
Share capital f% Z< 31 4,000 4,000
Reserves M 34 71,141 89,487
TOTAL EQUITY e 75,141 93,487
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022 and signed on KEEERN_ZT-__—F A=+ HHEILH
its behalf by: NTEERKRESE
Chen Rongsheng Guan Jingdong
PR 7t 28 BAER
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREZBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-_Z-_—_F#=-A=+T—HILEHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ENEIE 2PN

Retained

profits/
Share Share (accumulated Total
capital premium losses) equity

REBF
[N R 17 % 8 (REtE#R) ERAHE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHBT THET THET

(note 31) (note 34(b))

(MfE31) (B E34(b))

As at 1 April 2020 RZZE-_ZTFMA—H 4,000 84,403 4,013 92,416

Profit and total comprehensive 4 i #l J 2 T Y 25 42 58

income for the year — — 1,071 1,071
As at 31 March 2021 and RZT= i A=+—H
1 April 2021 kZE-—FmA—A 4,000 84,403 5,084 93,487

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEE N 2 MH

income for the year W = = (18,346) (18,346)
As at 31 March 2022 RZZE-_—F#=A=+—H 4,000 84,403 (13,262) 75,141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS
RERSRBR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE_Z-__F=A=+—RHIFE

2022 2021
—==-= T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& EHHELSHKE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BrFLAT (B18) 5T (18,344) 1,071
Adjustments for: AT SBEEL AE :
Depreciation on property, plant and ~ #1% - B RREITE
equipment 12 6,080 4,579
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FHEEERE 12 3,714 5,478
Finance costs & KA 10 10,357 7,923
Gain on termination of leases HLIETHE R 12 — 2)
Written off of contract assets WiHE N EE 12 4,744 4,693
Provision for ECL on trade receivables #t & 5 W IE kK& L EE
and contract assets K TEER{E B B 18 st B s 12 2,000 1,052
(Reversal of)/provision for ECL on REMEUKRBNEHREE
other receivables BEtR (BE) #E 12 (1,090) 1,090
Imputed interest income He & B U A 8 (5,962) (5,962)
Premium charges on two life M ASRBRREZRE
insurance policies 171 120
Interest income A B WA 8 (789) (780)
Impairment of property, plant and W% - R RZERE
equipment 12 2,436 —
Operating profit before working capital & & & % 8) 5] & & 15 7
changes 3,317 19,262
Increase in inventories FEIEM (14,340) (1,857)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 WG IEIE (13,228) (40,718)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets & #1& &/ A, (& 0) 18,681 (106,880)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BN FIE - 24 K& E A
deposits and other receivables FEUR FRIBR A, (3 0) 112,609 (161,071)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 e 5RIE R E
retention payables REE CRd) i (131,455) 213,300
Decrease in contract liabilities GHBERD (2,112) (3,160)
Increase in accruals and other FEFtE R R H M ER
payables SRIBIE AN 47,244 3,800
Cash generated from/(used in) mEmE,/ (FTA)RE
operations 20,716 (77,324)
Interest paid EATFE (3,823) (1,622)
Income tax paid BEFTER 2) —
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE (572) (339)

Net cash generated from/(used in) g EEME (FA)
operating activities & F8

16,319

(79,285)

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




_ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
' FERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE-Z-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—==-= T —F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt &% FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHESHE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U H B 152 43
Payment for a life insurance policy ST ASREBRRE (9,454) —
Payment for right-of-use assets FREEEMNK 36(a)(iii) — (1,710)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE B REE
equipment 17 (1,767) (1,307)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI SIE N (32,032) (20,045)
Net cash used in investing activities ~ & EBIFTAIR G F58 (43,101) (23,019)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®BEZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Bank borrowings raised BERITER 36(b) 289,013 205,030
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITER 36(b) (194,311) (168,359)
Principal elements of lease payments fAE A& 2 H 36(b) (5,593) (9,772)
Net cash generated from financing BMEEAEHREFHE
activities 89,109 26,899
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRREEEYWEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RA) F58 62,327 (75,405)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNBREEREEEYD
beginning of year (6,789) 68,616
Cash and cash equivalents at FRORSERRESEEY
end of year 55,538 (6,789)
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH RERBSEEBYH N
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances SR1TRIR & sk 24 57,898 6,400
Bank overdrafts RITE X 28 (2,360) (13,189)
55,538 (6,789)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR R

For the year ended 31 March 2022

HE

1.

—E-_ A=+ —HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Act of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is Unit 01, 82/F., International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that, Blessing Well Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is
the immediate holding company of the Company; and Sendlink
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of foundation services and
leasing of machinery in Hong Kong and trading of electronic
devices in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

BT EEEZERBIRAF 2021/22 F %

—REH
ARBARZE—RAFEHAZT=HRE
eSS AR E RS MY
BERAR o EiEMiSEE i AP.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108
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SHBRAR ([BRA]) ERETT -

R|EHR  ARRIEZERE Bz
EERRA (—FKRAEBELES ([H
BELES|) MK AT) BAA
BRI EZER A A ¢ KSendlink Limited
(—ZXREBRLZHESEMKIHAT)
=¥ N/NEI L= 0f= 328201 /N I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

3. I REEBRIER
Bt #5 ¥R 5 2 R

(@) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED () ER#FEI M&EEBITETH
HKFRSs B 1% i &5 2£ Bl

AEEEXAERABELGMAE
MM EY T 5 BB B 15 E RS
AIRNRBIRAMEHE  %FE
AR-—F-_—FMOA-—BA=HZRK
57 26 B R [ B ) P9 98 Il A2 2

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark BER KRS EL FlREEHE
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Reform - Phrase 2 FOH - BADE — FoRR

ERIFE9% - A

BREEINETR  FE
MBREERFARRE
AHBRE LA F 163

CHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent B H SRS £ —E--fF
Concession beyond F16% (BFA) NAZT
30 June 2021 =K¢3:1)
COVID-19
HEREE
E=

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

BRI ESN RAFERAE
7B B 15 i RV E FT AR I 4R B
AEERAEEREBEFEMNE
BRARKRRERZEHEEH
BHREAMBARBEREATE

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(@) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED (@)

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phrase 2

3. BRMHMEIREEITER
B RHREER (&)

FER Gl RIEIEFT BB
M smE 2R (E)

TR EERFEOR -
EREFTEBEIR - F
B EREERER &
BB EELENFIRRE
78 B 35 3R —EE,EJEEJGSJ?.({I&
EIAR)FEBEENE-$2
P ER
ZEBEAATIER R B IZ
AEZER: ((EEeHEE 2/

\
pini}

DH nH

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining

contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii)
discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate
benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark rate
as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not
have contracts that are indexed to benchmark interest
rates which are subject to the IBOR reform.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—AHLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

3. BRMHMEIREEITER
B RHREER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED (@ R REEIEE
HKFRSs (CONTINUED) B mEER(8)
Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related EEMBHESELF165,
Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021 (BRIR) —_FE-_—F A8

=+ B #KICOVID-191H 4

The Group previously applied the practical expedient
in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required to
assess whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met. One of
these conditions requires the reduction in lease payments
affect only payments originally due on or before a specified
time limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time limit
from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

With the extended time limit, certain rent concessions
that were previously ineligible for the practical expedient
because of the original time limit, become eligible.
Accordingly, these rent concessions, which were
previously accounted for as lease modifications, are now
accounted for as negative variable lease payments, and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers those payments occurred.
There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at 1
April 2021.

HeEE
AEBLEAMERR S IEHEE
BIZE16%5% 2 AIITHEE 75 7% » BUE
HRBECOVID-19E & 3| % 2 ¢
BE - REFEEERGEMH - &
AEATHZEHCEBRELE
REE B - B —IBEHEKE
ENFBLEFERERE TR
BRekZATEIERZ 5k o — 2= —4F
BT ABEERHA T = —F X
A=+tHERE-_ZT - —F,A
=+H-

BEERROER  BERRKRM
TEAATRENZNE THSE
BESTAGKRME - At - FBE
ESHEEERARNESERRIE
RAERNZHEENTRARK - WS
B T RE B R AR
HREBSER - H T ——FN0
A—BEmRVERTERZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

BRAFTE] KRBT RR
B RHREER (&)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

E B AR 18 15 K & B F
Rl RARIEET BB W % R
L2 3% |

| e VAN

AEEVKRIREEATREEM
BHARER=_FT=_—FMA—AH
59 16 B9 B B T2 A R T 5T R A4S
BRI BB BIREER - ZEHE]
MIEIERT BB M B RE XA BIE
AT EAEREENAR -

(o)

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2021. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination - Reference to the BB BRG] B0 -HESE
Conceptual Framework? E35% (BT &) B IR

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment — Proceeds

BEEERF165

ME - WERRE—

before Intended Use? CCHES) {EREE R & A AY BT
B 5hIg2
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a BRGHEAFIR  BREN-ETRH
Contract? (CHES) K A2
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020 FRE —E-\FE-BC
Cycle? TERBHBRSE
o ERERE R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or BAGHEANS IR BEDERREHHE
Non-current' UEETA) e
Amendments to HKAS 1and ~ Presentation of Financial Statements and BAGHENEIR  MBERZZZIIR
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements - Disclosure (BAR)REEME  (FLEAAE
of Accounting Policies’ REERERRR —BHBE
5% ZBE

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors — Definition of

BAGHEAFEH
SCHES)

BETEORE - R3ft
RERZ 2§

Accounting Estimates’ o atfst 2 B &
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax Related to BEEHENRNE  HASH-E-R5E

Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single CHES) EREEN AR

Transaction' TR A"

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

HE

3.

—E-—HZA=t+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRAFTE] KRBT RR
B RHREER (&)

(b) 2 | A1E & K AR #h
Al R EERT BB M 15 3R
LRI (48)

e VAN n=l

L RZTE=Z=F—HA—HAxz2#%HA
A B9 4 HA R A AR

2 RZTBE-_—F—A—HAxz2#%HA
A B9 4 [ HA R A AR

AREB R AU FERTA R £
AEERERBENTE - 298
1b - HAER AR FHRE KA
YR AMBRRELBRETE

ERGFTHE

ZEHFAMBRERTIIRE L RAE MR
B ETIGFERRESBHAERRI -

RENTEBABMBRE LN M
BRBAERETHERG G TFR
BEERERASESTHERMNBRET
TR - P REBEREENHE LR
BN - RBRRAEFFHEEPBRE
BERNEIEFERH ESH

RAUREHEEMBRERERANEAS
AR ENAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) CONSOLIDATION (@) ZAKE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

ZEGAMBHRRBEARA R
HIfEARBE=A=T—HH
FEHEK - WBRARAR/AEEHES
EHIENER - EARBEE B2 H
% B B T A2 F B) [0 ¥R A R e 3
EREZAIYPLBRNREENESR
HAZEEBNENMEEXEFRE
o BIEGIZER - EAKERE
MENE T EREENIEEER
A (AHEROREERTEN
A IR RASEHZER
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mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. EXRGEBUR (&)

(b) SMNEEEE

(i)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (o) INEEEH (58)
(CONTINUED)
(iiiy Translation on consolidation (i) ZFAREZBE

SEERZYEERWER
RARRIZINER FABEAE
REBZXERY BRI
BUATHTABRERARRZ
25E% :

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

REFBRARKES

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of =

financial position presented are translated at BERBENIZB@Y
the closing rate at the date of that statement of WAk Az B B 2 W [
financial position; R

Income and expenses are translated at average W ThiR HAR 2 S [E
exchange rates for the period (unless this R E (IR FHAE

average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

RYFAMRHE AR
FERZEYEC AR
BB - AZIERT -
WE AR BEE
EREHE) R

P M 2 B 34
ERE MR TR
BB 3 BhiEe Rt -

(c) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT () W% - #es R

Property, plant and equipment, held for use in the FIEEESHES MR S E
production or supply of goods or services, or for THAZHME  KERZRER
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated 4R A WSRO 2= A A K AN OR B 18
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent ZFtTERHZZRFHRERE (1
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated B -

impairment losses, if any.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

Furniture and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,

and is recognised in profit or loss.

4. EXRGEBUR (&)

(c)

W~ MR MR E(E)

HRAEREZIAR B RRARK
BRI AT BERAREE - MR
Emﬁ$ LRI SERTER - TEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (d) s

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

REHWFRBER - AEREFGEO=
CEHELBEMEE - WEHRT
BAE—ERERAEFHE#ANE
EZERARRAE - el sH
Ep=HE - EXEFEREETRD
BRIEEZERIARKEZER SR
EBBRIEI BN - BIRR
BRI -

() AEKEEHEREA
REEMRB B NEEE
REAREELEERAR
HHEMSI2EARATZRE
HHEREEEEEMER
Sho EARKEBEEEEE
RIMEER  AEEIZFIA
HEBRAEETEREEER
b - BZETEE N
ERBAZEENRRESRA
BEAGUEEERRRFAX °

EREEENCE  HER
BT RE A RN EE N R
ZBERHER - WERE
EMREEZMEK (fd 7% F
RAREREE) HE 215
EERFEREER - NHHE
Rk MERBEREHEKA
AEMAMERXARAE
FRAFOXFTE - THBUORN K
—HEBRL R EHEEN
RERBEREEREZE
EF AMREELZEF
HIRM BRSPS -




mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right- of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment/the carrying amount
of the relevant right-of-use asset is transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. EXRGEBUR (&)

(d)
(i)

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report

g (&)

AEBFREBEA ()
REEER(CHFER 2L
FREEENRRKAE
EhERHEEREZMGE
mERF I A Bk Z AT
N2 ERBENK - ARA
EEZEA IR EREKA
EERBRT  ERBEE
ZRATFBERE RBERA
B E E Sk iE R AR B E sk
BEMESMmES 2 &t
PRAS - R AZARRRE R IR
BB FKRRZ HE %
B o (£ REEEBRKRRKA
= BT E MR EE B
BE o

fill AN = B & 12 A 1H A B
MRS HEREEEL
preE®E: RIEmEEEBM
SR BEHERERFHE
mAy Ltz MEAETRITE -
BRI EREEEREMGE
A A F R EEY CARRE
ERE) NIRBERART IR
£

EAEBERNEERERE
EGSHBEEEERGE
RITEBEEEER - 186
EREEER KA KRR
REEMREBRERS
WE - WBRLREEER
REEENFEEEEEY
ESR S G



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)
(CONTINUED)

under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the
Group took advantage of the practical expedient set
out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(i) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in
the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy set out in note 4(t) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

()

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to work
on real estate assets under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction activities create or
enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to- cost
method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The directors
consider that this input method is an appropriate measure
of the progress towards complete satisfaction of these
performance obligations under HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(¢)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (CONTINUED)

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers for
construction of properties based on achieving a series
of performance-related milestones. When a particular
milestone is reached the customer is sent a relevant
statement of work signed by a third party assessor and
an invoice for the related milestone payment. The Group
will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There is
not considered to be a significant financing component
in construction contracts with customers as the period
between the recognition of revenue under the cost-to-
cost method and the milestone payment is always less
than one year.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties for
late completion are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)
(CONTINUED)

(h) RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF (h) ﬁ@ RBERIEERES]T
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in EAEBEERBKRIAEGHNEKEX
the consolidated statement of financial position when the SRR - R E B ISR R T
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions ReMEERSRAER-

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially TREENCRABEBEVNRIEATF
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly BitE - WK ETEREERS
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets BEETREEAATEEREBRD
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and ([AAFEERERZ]) c2/@mE
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss EREHBE) HEZERBER K
(“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of ARBERERRKTASHKRE £
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, BEENERBENATE(RE
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable RIBERME) « WA TFEZER
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at EnveMmEEdeMmAEBEEE
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss. FEIER R SRk A BN R B2 R ©
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the rEEEREEEESREM
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, BHRENER  SEH S ﬁﬂﬁ?
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially NZEEMBEREZBRIES

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to REmEREE S — gk 75"%‘”3
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains IEERZIESREE - WASERL
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and EEENERBECEREEMNS
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group 17 48 K B8 R B K [B] 3R 3 A AR
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an EHZEEEE A RNEERERE
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If RZEERHNREBEEZ KL EA
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards LA N S FRHEREBEEE o i
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group AEERBMEZEESMEEME
continues to recognise the financial asset and also ez BREDE R R E R - AARSE
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds BEEEAZCBEE ' TEK
received. ISR EEREEREE -

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only B EEREENE ETREMAR -
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled SHSEME - AEE SR IEERS
or have expired. The difference between the carrying BEE - BRIEBIANSREEN
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the FEHEHEHENREMKERNE
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash H(BEAMNEEEIFRSEERK
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in EAREBER) NEBERER

profit or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the instrument is held for the collection
of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the instrument is calculated using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

0)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.

()
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

(i) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

(i) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.
(iii) Equity instruments
An equity instruments in any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)
(CONTINUED)

(m) REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (m) Wz K H At WA
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or U %5 7F 72 on ok AR 7% 2 128 ) 4 4% 7R
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of SEEHBREER ZHERE (T
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to BEARRE=FTRDBz2ZELHE
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of THEZRTEPRER - a1~ E
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other FEIRED S SN - WA IR
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts. ERESITE -
Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in REBES DW= TR £
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(g) above. FEA(Q)FTE IR T ATERR ©
Revenue from the sale of electronic product is recognised HEEFEMMBE IREYE
when control of the goods has transferred, being when Z(EYERNEMEEETH
the goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s specific I(RE))RGER - ERER @ 8t
location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler has EHHEYNEESTAREREAE
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price ROWEBRMERE  EHEEYR
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on BEXEEMF WEAEEREWEH
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and HFRERBRER - EEMRMAT
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by HEEE P - N5 B W SR PR RRIE
the Group when the goods are delivered to the wholesaler REAE R R R IEEREEF KA
as this represents the point in time at which the right to AR — BRI - A REH
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage AIEAFRKEAZE -

of time is required before payment is due.

Interest income is recognised as its accrues using the F B AR EERIZERFI =%
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at R - LIRBBEK AT EMALES
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective BERBEZEMEEMS @ NHRE
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the EZBENERAERMNE - 5iE
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective BEREZERMEEMS @ DERE
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross 2 BESE RN (BN 42 AR T (B Rk = /&5
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset. BEE) ERAERNE -

Rental income receivable under operating leases is wEAE A WA TIRAE
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the EHREHEANEES B
periods covered by the lease term. NR B R o

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave is recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(iii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a share option scheme and
issues equity-settled share-based payments to eligible
employees (including directors). Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non-market based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(p) BORROWING COSTS (0) 1& B kA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for
the year. Taxable profits differ from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profits nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(r)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an
expense through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash- generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash- generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECLs is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward- looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if:

() The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i)  Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that receivables that
meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEM BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(t

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,

—
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including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recover y
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EAREFTBXK (&)

(CONTINUED)

(u)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

(u)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. S E MR T E {45t

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations
which are dealt with below).

(@) Revenue recognition of construction contracts
relating to accounting for variation orders
During the course of business, the Group would make
claims for additional work performed, which may arise
either under specific circumstances provided for under
the contracts, or due to variations made to the contract
specifications by customers. Where the amounts of such
claims have not been formally agreed at the end of the
reporting period, the amount recoverable as estimated
by management is included in the contract assets in
determining the estimated recoverable amount.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(t), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Revenue and profit recognition of
construction contracts

As disclosed in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recognition on a construction
contract is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contracts,
as well as the work done to date. The management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and provision for claims,
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations provided
by contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budgets accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
When the final cost incurred by the Group is different from
the amounts initially budgeted, such differences will impact
revenue and the profit or loss recognised on the contracts.
The provision for claims is determined on the basis of
the delay in the number of workdays of the completion of
the construction works which is highly subjective and is
subject to negotiation with the customers. Management
conducts periodic review of the provision amount.

Significant judgement is required in estimating the contract
revenue, contract costs, variation works and provision
for claims which have an impact on the percentage of
completion of contracts and profit or loss recognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s contract
assets and contract liabilities were amounted to
approximately HK$283,789,000 (2021: HK$309,034,000)
and HK$NIl (2021: HK$2,112,000) respectively.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates
or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2022 were
approximately HK$41,282,000 (net of impairment loss
of approximately HK$2,436,000) (2021: approximately
HK$42,158,000 (net of impairment loss of HK$Nil)) and
HK$11,451,000 (2021: HK$19,521,000) respectively.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregated carrying amount of
trade receivables and contract assets were approximately
HK$378,461,000 (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$5,000,000) (2021: HK$390,658,000 (net of loss
allowance of approximately HK$3,000,000)).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk, except for United States Dollar (“US$”) denominated
deposit and prepayment for life insurance policies and
Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated bank balances. Other
than that most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HKS, the functional
currency of the Group’s entities. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2022, if HK$ had strengthened 5 percent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year ended 31 March
2022 would have been approximately HK$2,504,000
(2021: Nil) higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange loss on bank balances denominated in RMB. If
HK$ had weakened 5 percent against RMB with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated loss after tax for
the year would have been approximately HK$2,504,000
(2021: Nil) lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on bank balances denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policy will not be
performed as US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$ is
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BB R EE (&)
(b) CREDIT RISK b) EERR

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables and contract assets) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents and deposit and
prepayment for a life insurance is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. As at 31 March 2022, the top 3
(2021: 3) largest trade debtors were approximately
HK$79,431,000 (2021: HK$66,344,000) or approximately
84% (2021: 81%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.
The Group seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit history.

Trade receivables and contract assets
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 14 to
45 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. MZEKRERE (&)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) b) EERR (£)
Trade receivables and contract assets ESBRPRERENEE
(continued) (48)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables REBEZRBEERE2BEREEE
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. EHeBEA=2EZ2EKNFKIERE
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not REEZBEEE BRAEEZ
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different BEEEEBERTEETTR
debtors, the loss allowance based on past due status is BERAZEBEEXEEAEZE -
not further distinguished between the Group’s different irfEE—F RO AEETRE
debtors. AR B HAR R 2 BIEEE -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIEHEBAREENR _ZT__
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and FZA=+—HRE S REWFHE
contract assets as at 31 March 2022: REHNEEMABREERRRE
HEEEBBZER
2022
—E__—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AR B = BREAE BiERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWRE
Current (not past due) BIER (R0 HA) 0.03% 44,907 15
30 days past due #HI30H 0.04% 44,441 18
Over 60 days past due 180 HA A 3860 H 6.69% 5,741 384
95,089 47
Contract assets EHEE
Current (not past due) BNER (R0 HA) 1.59% 288,372 4,583

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions
forward looking information and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

BHEBRXRDEAREREBELR
A ZELREHEAE - LRI
WS B BUR IR M IR - 3]
BRI ~ RTRE B R R AR B H R
RBFEAFRYPELERR 2 E
EHER -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BERREE (&)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) o) EERR (&
Trade receivables and contract assets ESRWBRRERSNEE
(continued) (48)
2021
T —4F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEEIE R X FRE A 1B
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FABIT TA&TT
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIE
Current (not past due) BUVER (R A7) 0.02% 42,987 8
30 days past due #HI0 H 0.02% 33,132 5
Over 60 days past due 0 HA A 3860 H 3.90% 5,742 224
81,861 237
Contract assets EHNEE
Current (not past due) BVER (AR A7) 0.89% 311,797 2,763

Movements in the loss allowance account for trade
receivables and contract assets during the year are as

FA - ERESRUKERENE
EZBBEREGBR2ZHMT

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
As at 1 April REA—H 3,000 1,948
Impairment loss recognised for the year £ A& 72 &9 ek (B 5 18 2,000 1,052
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 5,000 3,000

The increase (2021: increase) in loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract asset during the year ended 31
March 2022 was mainly due to the increase the gross
carrying amount of trading receivables and increase long
age of contract assets (2021: net effect of increase in
gross carrying amount of trade receivables and contract
assets).

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %

%Zi_f__i A=+—H1t
FE - %J’EH&T/\E&/\%’Jﬁﬁﬁ’J
BRBEEAMMEN(ZE -5
B TEHRNE %TH&TAIEM
FBREAEIEMARGHNEENR
BRECIEM(ZT_—F : EHREWK
RIAR A X EE R R E L LN
E’]/‘:F?\/g)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BB R EE (&)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED) (b) EERER (&)

Other receivables H {t fE W SR 1E

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long BHEABSEREAZEE EA
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or EAOEERTEEGHEREE
non-response to collection activities, they are assessed Z Bt FEWCRIE - SRBER G
individually for impairment allowance. The Group ERIFHE - REEFE BT HEBA
recognised the provision for ECL by assessing the credit ZIEERRSE  BMIRERIKEZ
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the ATREE  AIREMEERIA R E BIRTT
likelihood of recovery, forward looking information and OB ERBHREEEERE -

considering the prevailing economic conditions.

All of the Group’s other receivables are considered to have AN B P A E b B W R IE 1 R
low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during BEFREERR - AR EHARM
the reporting period was therefore limited to 12-month e R B s 18 B PR 71218 A 78 A
expected losses. The other receivables are considered to E1E o E H AR FRIARE KV R R
be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and K BETAENEHABITHES
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual A\ e REENEAE IR - B
cash flow obligations in the near term. REEFREERR -
Movements in the loss allowance for other receivables FA - B ENRIER BB EEE
during the year is as follows: BT
2022 2021
—E-—F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FH&T
At 1 April R A—H 1,090 —
Impairment losses recognised for the year F AR 2 J8 (E &5 18 — 1,090
Reversal of impairment loss for the year /X # [Bl Ji{ (B &5 18 (1,090) —
At 31 March R=A=+—8H — 1,090
(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (c) mMBE SR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REBHBRERTEHERARR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it FEHNRSESHE - EREHS
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity BRUENEHERERERHE
requirements in the short and longer term. THEEMNBSHE -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ﬂ%ﬂlﬁ'ﬁqﬁ(,ﬁ)

(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) ) nBEERERE (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual T%WT\K%.E\EBA & A
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the RiARUBRBFEESRE (BEFEZELD
Group’s liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows FI R E ok (10 AFBF X)L
(including interest payments computed using contractual HHRMBITAERFENF EA
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the FR) M A B A RE A B SRS A B
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be FAHGFENFEIBREHEE -
required to pay.
Specifically, for bank borrowings and lease liabilities BEmMS HRNEERERERK
which contain a repayment on demand clause which can *”ﬁﬁﬁf'ﬁl 163 AT BB E NI
be exercised at the lenders’ sole discretion, the analysis BITEMRITERREERE - %
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period DR ERBAI gL AN KN & FEH
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if the By RBEERE - BMOBRAS
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call 1718 B Z K BD B I8 TRA) M| G (R 4
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for Mo sp T HEBENEBIF RS T
the remaining lease liabilities is prepared based on the TR EEERBHRR -
scheduled repayment dates.
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities rEEERmEE &é\%@fﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁ
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as SREMEBBERONET :
follows:
Between Between
On Within 1t02 2t05
demand 1 year years years Total
REX 1£ R 122% 285 Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THL T
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZBE-Zf=Zf=+-H
Financial liabilities subjecttoa ~ ZRRZEXEEERN
repayment on demand clause cRER
Bank borrowings, secured RITEF - BER 181,027 = = = 181,027
Lease liabilities REAE 4,365 = = = 4,365
Other payables Hi A 34,490 = = = 34,490
Financial liabilities not subjecttoa BEAZRREEREER
repayment on demand clause Hemas
Trade and retention payables BHENFERENRE S = 240,570 = = 240,570
Accruals 2R = 26,070 = = 26,070
Lease liabilities REAE = 3,166 392 = 3,558
Other borrowing, unsecured Hifgs 5K = = 100,000 100,000

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

BERREE (&)
(c) mBEZRR (&)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6.

(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

Between Between
On Within 1102 2105
demand 1 year years years Total
BREX 15/ 1226 2E5F @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiL FEL THL Tix THL
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB--F=f=+-H
Financial liabilities subjecttoa ~ ZRREEREREFRH
repayment on demand clause ¢RERE
Bank borrowings, secured ROER - BEA 97,154 = = = 97,154
Lease liabilities HERRE 7,188 = = = 7,188
Other payables R 512 — — — 512
Financial liabilities not subjecttoa BAZBRRREREERAN
repayment on demand clause SRERE
Trade and retention payables ZHRNFERENRES = 372,025 — — 372,025
Accruals and other payables Bt ER = 12,804 = = 12,804
Lease liabilities HERRE = 2,953 1,972 = 4,925
Other borrowing, unsecured AfpfER - BEA = = 100,000 = 100,000

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings and lease liabilities with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts are greater
than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the lenders will exercise its
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such bank borrowings and lease liabilities will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates.

TREEER K ERE EEHKIA
HEERBERERIGHORITE
FEHERBEELNIHERD
#r - BEFABRERRAE MR
FOMBMAR - Bt - BRARIES
REXFRENZIRBERDI AR
K RSREISE NPT R A IR
BT RAEENMBEIORE - BES
RRERATKAREITEERE
BEKARER -&EFHEE 5H
RITBERREEAESRREAE
BEABRERN -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BB R EE (&)

(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) ) mHELRR (E)
Within Between Between Over
1year 1to2years 2to5years 5 years Total
1£R 122% 285% 5640 L @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TRT TRT TAT TAT
As at 31 March 2022 RZB--§=fA=+-H
Bank borrowings RAER 170,028 830 6,477 4,917 182,252
Lease liabilities HERE 2,528 2,152 = = 4,680
As at 31 March 2021 RZB--5=A=1+-H
Bank borrowings RITEN 92,078 469 1,363 4,464 98,374
Leas liabilties HEAE 3,282 2,528 2,153 = 7913
(d) INTEREST RATE RISK (d) =& bz
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises AEBEBERBETER - ASR

BREMZEE  EFEBEBER - R/IT

from its bank deposits, deposit for a life insurance product,
trust receipt loans, bank loans, factoring loans, bank
overdrafts and the remaining balance of lease liabilities and
therefore bear interests at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

At 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$37,000 (2021: HK$16,000 profit after tax for the year)
lower (2021: higher), arising mainly as a result of lower
interest expense on bank borrowings. If interest rates had
been 100 basis points higher, with all other variables held
constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year would
have been HK$37,000 (2021: HK$16,000 profit after tax
for the year) higher (2021: lower), arising mainly as a result
of higher interest expense on bank borrowings.

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %

X REER  RITEXNEE
BENKRTEKNREREN X
R - B RS e T ORI B A

EitH 8 -

RZZE-_—F=A=+—8 "
FIETFH100EES, - MFTA H
BERFLE  AFRNLEETHE
EEBERD (ZE=—F & m)
37,0008 L (ZE=—%F : FAH
%% 16,0008 7T) * TERHEIER
TEHEENFERASIRD o WHl=E
F100MEEZ - mATH & 2R
BAE  BIFRRAMREBERS
#I(ZE=—4F : B J) 37,000
BIL(ZEZ—F : FAKR G
16,0008 7T) * TERBRTEE
/A B R g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6.

B EREE (&)
e MMEMARNEHTE

AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD =]
2022 2021
—EC-_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TA&TT
Financial assets: SREE :
Financial assets at amortised cost WS AN BR 2
S EEE 296,489 298,587
Financial liabilities: SRIBME:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B SHR ARSI BR 2
SRIBE 575,051 575,389

() FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate
fair values as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

their respective

H 2¥E
AEESRMEERSBABRE
A BN R R BT (EEE
FERZZE__FR=ZFT=_—%F
ZA=+—HMAFEEHRS -

7. REVENUE 7. W
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REENKZESTAT ¢
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Recognised over time within the &8I WEE 155
scope of HKFRS 15 BEEARNAE -—KBBRER
Provision of foundation services B b B AR S 707,392 933,797
Recognised at point in time within the &8 B 153 & EH| $E155%
scope of HKFRS 15 HERNRE -RKREHER
Trading of electronic devices BETREES 43,203 =
Revenue from other sources R EHAMHRRZ W=
Leasing of machinery HWMEE 1,172 =
751,767 933,797
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HzE—

T _F-A=+—HIHFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregated amount of revenue
expected to be recognised in the future related to performance
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the
reporting date is approximately HK$262,821,000 (2021:
approximately HK$784,525,000). The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the work is completed
which is expected to occur over the next 12 months (2021: 12
months).

7.

Yz (1)
RZE_—_F=ZA=+—H0 ' BitR¥
5 PR HE TR HY ER A 3R 45 B B R SEAK (3K 3P
DARTEK)BHETHEBNENRIZSHE
#) /262,821,000 T (ZF=-—F : 4
784,525,000/ 70) © A5 B A 18 2R SEAK
T ERRERTERT W 25 (FEET R R 2k 121
A(ZEZ—F 120 8) R%E4E) -

OTHER INCOME 8. Hflg A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Government grant income (note) BT i B IR (B 3E) 212 5,819
Imputed interest income B2 WA 5,962 5,962
Interest income FEMA 789 780
Sundry income I A 1,121 138
8,084 12,699
Note: The amount represents the receipts from Construction Innovation MieE - s RBE N B BB BN iR a2
and Technology Fund (2021: Employment Support Scheme) provided @J%ﬁ&ﬂ&%‘i\ (ZZ=—F : [RHZE]
by the Hong Kong government under which the conditions of the sT&1) B9 FRIE - ELIE TN B 6 B A9 16 1
government grant were fulfilled during the year. EE"EI*JL@I
yaN * > TN
SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ZEEH

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, being the
directors of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the
segment and to assess its performance.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

B EER

oAl =1t

AEERIZBEERKE (AARAE
B EREHERASEARNA R
&R

TETHEBELSE  UASES
KA E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Al ~ N ==
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. D EEHR (&)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BEDHEEN(B)
(CONTINUED)
The directors consider that the Group manages its businesses by BEERR AEBRIFEERHEET -
divisions, which are organised into business units based on their Wiz H IR A IRFSAKEFEL - M
services provided, and has identified “Foundation — provision of [Hh 2 — 3R b EE RS | 35 B7E T 23k
foundation services” as the reportable operating segment. BIENHE
In addition to the above segment, the Group has other operating br Bt pRE 2o REBER *ﬁ_ﬁ{ th & 18
segments which mainly include leasing of machinery and trading S FEBEEMEEREFREE
of electronic devices. These operating segments individually 2 AEEENHESENRENE EZ\
do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds of determining T2 i&ﬁiﬁ NERNEELREEK-
reportable segments. Accordingly, these operating segments I ZECELEREAEIEM] -
are grouped as “Others”.
The reportable segments are identified in a manner consistent BATE2E®mMOBzE s EAANEESRT
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Eﬁ(%ﬁ)\%hhlﬁﬁhﬁ%éﬂ (AEE
Group’s senior executive management for the purposes of BB RBEAR) 2AE o
resource allocation and performance assessment.
Foundation Others Total
Eft fi
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZB-Cf -F--& CZB--E -E--% CZB--E —E--f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TAL TER TAL TER Tan
Reportable segment revenue BYERAENE 707,392 933,797 44,375 — 751,767 933,797
Reportable segment results BiEL HECEL 14,143 26,921 (1,906) (1,415) 12,287 25,506
Central administrative expenses and directors’ PRITHBX REZH £
emoluments (30,581) (24,435)
(Loss)/profit before tax A (B8) /8l (18,344) 1,07
Reportable segment results include: BFERIEEERS
Interest income FlEWA 716 4 13 = 789 471
Finance costs RERA 4,390 1,887 - 26 4,390 1,913
Depreciation on property, plant and nE KERIENE
equipment 4,209 3,982 1,871 597 6,080 4,579
Depreciation on right-of-use assets RRERENE 3,337 3,239 = 722 3,337 3,961
Additions to property, plant and equipment ~ AEWE - BERRfE 1,767 1,307 = = 1,767 1,307
Additions to right-of-use assets REFREEE 1,517 3,188 — — 1,517 13,188
Provision for ECL on trade receivables and ~ $tE 5 EMFAR AN EER
contract assets BHEEBENRER 2,000 052 = = 2,000 1,052
Impairment of property, nE BERZERE
plant and equipment 2,436 — — — 2,436 —
Written off of contract assets HEENEE 4,744 4,693 - - 4,744 4,698
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. DEEFR (&)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BESEER(B)
(CONTINUED)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external L2 WM FAE H E KSR N ED

customers. BB

DEEERRDBEERA - PRITH
MXREZEMEA 2 DREME (BER)

Segment results represent (loss)/profit attributable to the
segment without allocation of corporate income, central

administrative expenses and directors’ emoluments. ik Al o
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DHEEENMEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTEHINAREREEDHE D 2 EE
by operating segments: RBEHDHT
2022 2021
—EC-C—F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FA&T
SEGMENT ASSETS SREE
Foundation b E 563,890 614,430
Others HAh 71,918 6,154
Total segment assets DEEEASG 635,808 620,584
Unallocated assets RO EE 22,212 62,308
Consolidated assets HREBE 658,020 682,892
SEGMENT LIABILITIES SEEE
Foundation b E 441,623 491,270
Others HAi 5,732 3,088
Total segment liabilities DEAEEE 447,355 494,358
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE 135,524 95,047
Consolidated liabilities rEAaE 582,879 589,405

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources to segment:

(i)  All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
the unallocated assets; and

(i) All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than those unallocated liabilities which are centrally
managed by the Group’s management.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s operations are not subject to significant seasonal
factors.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

All non-current assets of the Group as at 31 March 2022
and 2021 are located in Hong Kong. While the geographical
information of the Group’s revenue from external customers for
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, based on locations
of customers, are set out below:

2 EER (#)
NEEENREBE(E)

N

REBRPBRBARADEIEER

) BRADEEEI  IEEEHRS
REATERIE R

—

(i) MEAKRBEEEESR-—EEZZ
ERNEREIN - IBERBEHHD

REATEHRIE -

LEFEE
AEBNEBETREATHEARY
Z2 o

#o (& &

REBR-_ZE-_—FF T -—F=H
=+ —BHWAEERBEEANVRSE
BoHE_E - —FER_FE-—F=f
=+ —HLEFEASEREINBEFH
W EEPMEMEmE HAEE
BT -

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT TA&TT

Hong Kong BB 708,564 933,797
PRC s 43,203 =
Total et 751,767 933,797
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. 7 HEEX (&)
REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEXPNHE
The Group’s customer base for whom transactions have BHE_ZT-_—_FKk=_FT=_—%=H
exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years ended 31 March =+ —HBLEFE BAXRZEALAE
2022 and 2021 is set out as below: 10% A EREZM B EBHFI 0T
2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FBT
Foundation services b EL AR 7
Customer 1 (note) ZEA (M) N/A RE A 145,081
Customer 2 =E2 178,572 190,121
Customer 3 =3 138,020 237,984
Customer 4 ®P4 193,551 205,157
Note: This customer did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the ek ZBFPIYEERMASEEEZE S _—_F
Group for the year ended 31 March 2022. =A=+—HLFEMNBKZI0%BIA L -
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. Bt & B A=
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Interest on bank borrowings RIT BT A 3,823 1,622
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 572 339
Imputed interest expenses on other HMERNEERNSMAX
borrowings 5,962 5,962
10,357 7,923
Less: Amounts attributable to contract B AN TIRREGeRE
works (1,532) (410)
8,825 7,513

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE M. ABHAX
2022 2021
—E-= —EF-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  BIEAF{IE — D EFER 2 -

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong
will be one of taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%), and profits above
that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5% (2021:
16.5%). The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered Profit Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: sufficient tax losses brought forward to set off
against the assessable profit).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25%
(2021: 25%).

The reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
(loss)/profit before tax at the statutory tax rates is as follows:

RIEMAFSHNE  REBKILL
EF—RHAEREEEREE2HEE B
T % A8 €188.256% (ZE = — £ ¢
8.25% ) T KB MBBEZ S HE
B % A S & #16.56% (Z & = — 4 ¢
16.5%) B R BT o TFRFE MR F1F
TR =R I S MO 5 B B B2 0 5 A 5 4 48 A
16.5% (ZZF ——% : 16.5%) B K&
i o

MR AEERBE-F - —F= 4
= — P R RBOR R - B
B EBFIBHHERE (—E——F
%fﬁENEME%ETﬁ%%%Mm
7)) o

SR R25% (2= —4F
25%) Z B EEFTIE ©
BOAERRBANRRE R (B18) %5
ZETSHMASTMEERMNT

2022 2021
—E-F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET F& T
(Loss)/profit before tax B AT (B518) A (18,344) 1,071
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of %16.5% (—ZF -~ —4F :
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 16.5%) B & & M 15
%R A EHIE (3,027) 177
Tax effect of income that is not taxable HIA %TRHSU\EI’J%R%% 7 & (1,023) (1,996)
Tax effect of difference in tax rate —EfBARMEERN
of a subsidiary W e (12) -
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ A] 3038 51 sz &9 % 75 52 22 1,934 3,053
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses E)) 3 5T B AR FE SR TE 5 48
not previously recognised B 75 2 2 - (1,827)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREBNHETZE
not recognised 1,013 351
Tax effect of previous tax losses recognised 5‘&2 [T sR T IE B 18 A B 75
2 - (48)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised PN EE AFIEE BN 2 & 1,117 290
Income tax expense FTISBiF X 2 —
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12. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after

12. £ R (B1E) ER

AEENER (BR) aMeEnk/

charging/(crediting) the following:

(FRFA) THI&IE :

2022 2021
—E-F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FExT FAT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BX R 5 A
— Current —RN &7 750 750
— Over-provision in prior years —BAFEHBEREE — (107)
750 643
Cost of construction materials FREM B A (a) 242,756 191,624
Cost of sales $HE A (a) 43,092 -
Depreciation on property, Y MR NEEITE
plant and equipment (b) 6,080 4,579
Depreciation on right-of-use assets  fFAEEERE (b) 3,714 5,478
Gain on termination of leases LIS R — 2)
Written off of contract assets WEEENEE (c) 4,744 4,693
Provision for ECL on trade MEZEBGRIE - &4
receivables, contract assets and & B R E A fE G IE
other receivables, net of reversal of ~ FYFE Bz B &85 1T
impairment loss B IR (EEE
o 910 2,142
Impairment of property, plant and Wz - HBRREERE
equipment (c) 2,436 -
Lease payments not included inthe YWzt ATHE B E:T 2
measurement of lease liabilities B &R (d) 15,922 17,914
Notes: B &E
(@)  The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered. (8 ZeFWEFAHERARERBKR -
(b)  The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the b) ZeEEFABE_ZT-_—_FER_ZF
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 amounted to approximately T EZA=t+-—BLEENHEERA
HK$8,232,000 and HK$6,781,000 respectively. RERBEEAR - 53 511%98,232,00078 7T &
6,781,000/ 7T ©
() The amounts included in administrative and other operating expenses. () ZeBWEFATHREMEERAS -
(d)  The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the () ZeEEFABE_T=__FK=_F

years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$12,812,000 and HK$15,714,000 respectively.

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %

——F=A=t+—BLFENHEERAN
RERIEKL A - 5 5l A 412,812,000
7T % 15,714,000/ 7T °©
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. EERA X

2022 2021
—E-= T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FAT
Employee benefits expense EERFHXZ
(including directors’ emoluments): (BEEZHSE)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances E e A AN G=3: 67,240 68,747
Retirement benefits scheme RRETET B
contributions (a) 2,050 2,188
(b) 69,290 70,935

Notes: it 5=

(@)  Retirement benefits scheme contributions: (@)  RIKAEFIGHEIEK
The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF AEBBEE S @G MEAES GO
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes REBECEREERATERAES
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s FTE([RESETE]) ®HR - REE MR
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% (2021: 5%) BetEfFEMHRREEFSRIE
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount H5% (ZE=—%F :5%) & TR
of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with EENEARSHERFER1,5008T (=
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. T —4F 1,500/ L) © A& A A

Bl 1% - HRANEREREEME -

(b)  The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the b) ZEBEEFABE-_Z_—_FEK_F
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 amounted to approximately A=+ HIEFENEERR
HK$48,344,000 and approximately HK$52,486,000 respectively. RERB A - 5 5l 7 £148,344,0007%

TT & #152,486,0007% T °

(c)  Five highest paid individuals: () HAfumaSFHMAL:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year did not

include (2021: Nil) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
below. The emoluments of the remaining 5 (2021: 5) individuals are set
out below:

FANEB N RN RS A LI E
T F EIBEEE EHEC
RERTE T AR 6 B 3R R M k1480 2 4T
Ao BTE(ZBE=-—%F :58) ALH
B &5 -

2022 2021

—EBo—F —E—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FAT

Basic salaries and allowances HAE S RERL 7,576 7,294
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BREFET B K 52 52
7,628 7,346
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13.BEERA G X (&)

BsE - (%)

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(¢)  (continued) ) (&)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals who are not the
director fell within the following bands:

VHBEENAMNRSHMALOME
BT 5 E

2022 2021

—E-—F T —F

Number of person Number of person

Band of emoluments (HK$) B <& &5 (A T) A AEL
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 21,000,000/ 7T — 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7¢ £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7¢ £2,000,000% 7T 1 2
Over HK$2,000,000 #8182,000,0007% 7T 1 —

14, BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(@) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS:

The emoluments of every Director are set out below:

14 EER/FRER

(@) EFHT
FEEEFOMEHIMT -

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REARERAARHBBLARBNESCAARN M S

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses contributions Total
EHREA
he e  RERA ot Bl @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

[ TR TR TR TR TR

Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) REBZZ %4 (&) - - - - -

Mr. Guan Jingdong BHRLE 300 — — — 300
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
Directors:
Dr. Luo Tigfian BHBET (i) 150 = = = 150
Professor Lu Haitian BEGRHE 150 = = = 150
Mr. Liu Xin il ks 150 = = = 150
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE (ii) = = = = =
Total for the year ended BE-2--f=H
31 March 2022 St-BLEEAH 750 —

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—AHLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14.EE=EEFI Rz (&)

(CONTINUED)

(a) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED)

(a)

0

% : (&)

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAZERARRERBARRBNESCAARN CME

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions Total
RINEN
g e REEL  GEMER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) RRELE(FE) — — — — —
Mr. Guan Jingdong BERLE 300 = = = 300
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Dr. Luo Tigjian BHBRET 150 = = = 150
Professor Lu Haitian BEERHEK 150 = = = 150
Mr. Liu Xin 27 % 4 150 = = = 150
Total for the year ended HZ-E--f£=f=1-H
31 March 2021 L EESG 750 = = = 750

No share options or any other forms of share-based
payments were granted to the directors during the year

(2021: Nil).

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

Notes:

i Resigned on 1 June 2022
ii. Appointed on 1 June 2022

FR - UEAESREBRERE
MEMEANBRODNR(ZF=—
FE) -

BE_ZT-_—_FR-_FT-—F=
A=+—HILFE  FAEEWER
FRESTHERTMALTZSE
AMSERRSIEENMALRER
SR MARNEE R Z R EA
BER A (E o

B

i RZTEZZFAA—HEE
i R-ZZE-_—FA—HEZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—RHALFE

14, BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: (CONTINUED)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2021:
Nil).

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement
and contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

15. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend to
the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

14.EEEGEANRER ()

(a)

EEME : (B)
P WmEFRER R EIREE
MG ez (B —4F : ) -

BRERA ISR 40 INEH
CIRIANEIL 3N SETE STV
EAARBEEREFTNHET
EERFEAERETHEEEAER
W M F R F R E D7 &
MEMEARS ZHRAH -

15. R 5

EFeTEZARRENEE_T =
FZAZ+—BHBLEFENEMAEKRE (=
T —F | o

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. 2% (F518) &7
(a) BASIC (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE @ EREXR(EHE) AT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the following:

SIRER (BR) /BHDEAT
FREH -

2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
(Loss)/profit for the purpose of calculating =& &M EAR (EE)
basic (loss)/earnings per share Rz (&8 w5 (18,346) 1,071
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
’000 ‘000
F B F %
Number of shares B3 & B
Weighted average number of ordinary ATEERERN(BER) S
shares for the purpose of calculating B 2 AR hn AE
basic (loss)/earnings per share T2 400,000 400,000
(b) DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (b) BREE(BE) &F

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share to be presented as
the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

HRARABE T - —FK—
- —F-A=+—HILFEL
EE B ST AR RITES
PSR EE (BB) /&F -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—RHALFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - BBJI KRB

Furniture and  Plant and Motor
equipment  machinery vehicle Total
RARZE HERER AE @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FTET BT TAET
Cost A
As at 1 April 2020 RZZ-TEMA—R 2,425 49,771 1,025 53,221
Transfer from right-of-use assets BRAGHAERE = 30,614 1,139 31,753
Additions WE 625 497 185 1,307
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-ZE=_—F=A=+—HRE
—E--F@mA—H 3,050 80,882 2,349 86,281
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFHAELE — 9,060 3,419 12,479
Additions NE 793 974 — 1,767
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-—F=A=+—H 3,843 90,916 5,768 100,527
Accumulated depreciation it E
As at 1 April 2020 E’\\\:%?:;?%EH —H 1,803 25,762 760 28,325
Transfer from right-of-use assets ERATRAEEE = 10,080 1,139 11,219
Charge for the year FRZMH 380 4,016 183 4,579
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R-ZE=_—%=A=1+—HR
“E-—-FMA—H 2,183 39,858 2,082 44,123
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFRAELSE = 3,187 3,419 6,606
Charge for the year FRT 321 5,576 183 6,080
Impairment A = 2,436 = 2,436
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-—F=A=+—H 2,504 51,057 5,684 59,245
Carrying amount BREE
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-—4$=RA=+—H 1,339 39,859 84 41,282
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-—4$=A=+—H 867 41,024 267 42,158

As at 31 March 2022, the aggregated carrying amount of R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H8 EEAE
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$9,392,000 #99,392,0007% 7T #) ¥ 2 - 1 38 K 3%

was pledged to secure bank borrowings (note 28) (2021: EERRITER (MiF28) ik (==
HK$8,840,000 pledged to secure bank borrowing and lease — —%F : 8,840,000/ TTEMEAIRITER

liabilities). MEEaBERHIEE) o

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




_ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - HBERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The Group conducted impairment testing to assess whether the
property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable at the
end of reporting period. In assessing the recoverable amount
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment for management
identified that certain of the Group’s plant and machinery
were damaged during the course of construction works under
which, the Group was unable to assess the value in use of
these damaged plant and machinery which have no future
economic benefit in the course of the Group’s operations. The
management are of the opinion that the fair value less cost of
disposal of these damaged plant and machinery is minimal due
to the significant repairment cost would be incurred in order to
make these damaged plant and machinery sold, As resulted,
the impairment losses of approximately HK$2,436,000 was
provided in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to
assess the recoverable amount of the remaining plant and
machinery under fair value less cost of disposal. No further
impairment loss of plant and machinery has been recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2022 due to the recoverable
amount of remaining plant and machinery is exceeded its
carrying amount.

The Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets at
the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant property, plant
and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are
transferred from right-of-use assets upon exercising purchase
options.

AEBETRENSAFEDE - #es
REBERERMERREZLKE - RFF
HAEBEYE MBI REHEZATKES
REEF  BIEERTASES THES K
WMEETEETIR 2 BREHRZIE B
I AR E R IE RS R AN E
& EREP I ERRCENZD A&
EEATHEFRABE - EHERA
AREEit S AR RS
AELEEBRABZHE  HEZIE
2SR AR A AR S B R AR
WEEEREK AKEBE-_T=-—_F
— A=t BLEFEEBEBRFTRERY
2,436,000/ ST KR E B 18 o

AEBBERE— 2B I EEHEMBE
DB R 2 5 B AN T R A A 25 e 4
RORT UL (Bl 58 o FR A E BRI S I AR Y
AEeEsREEE  B#E-S ==
FZAZt+—HULEFER FEE—F
TR M 25 I M AR O R (B B 18 o

AEEREHERERSNSHEEESR
ERRARE  HEME  HERRED
RAAR AR R TERITEBEEE
RERERAEEESL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FORLIFE 18B. ASERBAREMNRZER

INSURANCE POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had US$ denominated
deposit and prepayment for two (2021: one) life insurance
policies amounted to approximately HK$19,163,000 (2021:
HK$9,274,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has two
(2021: one) life insurance policies with an insurance company
to insure a director of a Group’s subsidiary, under which a
subsidiary of the Group is the beneficiary and policies holder. At
the inception, the Group is required to pay an upfront payment
for the policies. The Group may request a partial surrender or
full surrender of the policies at any time and receive cash refund
based on the value of the policies at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the gross premium paid at inception
plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and minus policies
expense and insurance premium charged. If such withdrawal is
made at any time during the first to the eighteen policies year, as
appropriate, a pre-determined specified surrender charge would
be imposed. The policies premium expense and insurance
charges are recognised in profit or loss over the expected life
of the life insurance policies and the deposit placed is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The deposit
placed for the life insurance policies carry guaranteed interests
at interest rates ranging from 2% to 4.25% plus a premium
determined by the insurance company during the tenures of the
policies.

The gross premium paid at inception of the life insurance
policies consist of a deposit placed element and a prepayment
for life insurance element. These two elements are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position at the
aggregate of the amount of gross premium paid plus interest
earned, and after deducting the annual cost of insurance and
other applicable charges.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

BN A

R—ZZE-_—_F=A=+—H8 4A5H
EUETLHENMG (ZTE=Z—F
— ) ABRBRRENEZES RBAMNK
T8 #919,163,0008 L (Z &2 = — &

9,274,000 7T) °

HE_ T -_—F-—A=+—HIFE "
AEBERBRAGAEMD(ZT=—
F:—1p) ASRBRRE - LLARERH
BRARESKR Bt AEEWBA
AAXEmARRERFEA - RAKE
AEBERRETMEMK - LB
BERF EREHRRKEIARR - RIRIE
B A HREEEKRIIRESERR ' RE
BEDRERHEMRREND HRINR
ﬁ%ﬁﬂum%WH% SR RIREBE
o A BEEE IR REFIEI18FER
Eﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁ{’ﬁtlj (ans@E ) -+ B #& = e N
TBAEBEMNRFERRE %Eﬁi&ﬁ
SRERRIEREASREBRENTERF
PREERR - M7 E IR SRS HKAFA
B FRET R - 5t AFRE %ETE
RIE IR F2% E4.25% KR & Fl| R
M%A“T#ﬁﬁiﬁmﬁmmmﬁﬁ

B o
o

FA?% ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁmﬂ%ﬁa%
TE& &A?%Fﬁﬁmﬁﬂ

E%Fﬁf DERENRBRFRESEMD
WﬂﬂgmﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁM¢Eﬁ$
MEMERER) REaBHRRIERA
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—AHLFE

18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A LIFE
INSURANCE POLICY (CONTINUED)

The directors of the Company consider that the Group will not
terminate the policies nor withdraw cash prior to the end of the
surrender period of the policies so entered as at 31 March 2022,
accordingly, the amount is presented as non-current assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Particulars of the policies are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAERBRENEER

A =RE ()

ARRESFRR/AEEBTER_F
CZF=A=+—HEFZHNRENR
REBERATR LRERRRR S - Fitt
S B IINERE BB R RASIEIE
MBEE -

REFEDT -

Guaranteed interest rates
REEF =

Second year

Policy Insured sum Upfront payment First year and onwards

RE RREH AN B RERLE
A US$3,000,000 Approximately US$1,153,000
(equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
HK$23,400,000) HK$9,003,000)
3,000,000 7T #71,153,000% 7T

(8 & 7 %923,400,000% 7T.) (18 & 7 #99,003,000/% 7T.) 4.25% 2%
B US$3,500,000 Approximately US$1,214,374
(equivalent to approximately (equivalent to approximately
HK$27,300,000) HK$9,454,000)
3,500,000% 7T 1,214,374 ¢

(18 & M #927,300,000% 7T.) (8 & 7 479,454,000 7T.) 4.25% 2%

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the deposit and prepayment for

two (2021: one) life insurance policies were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s banking facilities (note 28).

RZBEZZFR T —F=A=+—
B MR (ZZET=——%F: —H) ASRR
REMES MEMNREEEHEAEE
IBITEEMIET R (KizE28) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19.EAEEE
Leased plant and
machinery and Leased
motor vehicle properties Total
HEKER
BHUARRE HEYME wt
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
THET FET FET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZ_TFMHA—-H 29,347 3,026 32,373
Additions NE 8,510 4,678 13,188
Termination of leases RIERE = (28) (28)
Transfer to property, plant and BB EY ¥ - HE TR E
equipment (20,534) — (20,534)
Depreciation nE (2,785) (2,6993) (5,478)
As at 31 March 2021 and RZZB_—F=A=t—H
1 April 2021 —E-—FfWmA—H 14,538 4,983 19,5621
Additions NE — 1,517 1,517
Transfer to property, plant and ~ BB ZE¥E  HELRE
equipment (5,873) — (5,873)
Depreciation e (808) (2,906) (3,714)
As at 31 March 2022 RZZE__§=A=+—H 7,857 3,594 11,451

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets at
the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant right-of-use
assets and the related accumulated depreciation are transferred
to property, plant and equipment upon exercising purchase
options.

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$7,828,000 (2021:
HK$11,904,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$11,451,000 (2021: HK$19,521,000) as
at 31 March 2022. The lease agreements of leased assets do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased properties
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes instead
included in leased plant and machinery and motor vehicle of
approximately HK$7,857,000 (2021: HK$14,538,000) was
pledged as security for the Group’s lease liabilities (note 27).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

19. EHEEE (#)

AEERHERERSNSHBEEEE
ERPFTAEE  HEEREEENKRAR
HRARAMERTEEERERRES
VERE 1Y

R—EBE-_—_F=A=+—H8 HE
B F47,828,0008 L (Z & = —F
11,904,000/8 t) LB iHE £ B #E &
E #911,451,0008 L (Z & = — F :
19,521,000 7C) —HER - HEEE
HEmE TIN5 - HEB AR
BHELE 2 IBRFERKRIN - HEWE
TEMERBEBERER - HE#KSS
T A A K /R B8 497,857,000 T (=&
— —4%F :14,538,000/& 7T) D E B AR E
B EaEMEE (FE27) °

2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Depreciation expenses on FREEENITERX
right-of-use assets 3,714 5,478
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE
(included in finance costs) (GFAREBA) 572 339
Expenses relating to short-term lease REHERBERX
(included in cost of sales and services (FF ASH & K AT iE L AR 75
rendered) B ) 12,812 15,714
Expenses relating to short-term lease RMEESERERE
(included in administrative and other (FFAFTE R H A
operating expenses) A 3,110 2,200

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 36(c).

ERBEENE SR O ARNFBHNH
F£36(C) °

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. FAEEE (&)

For both years, the Group leases various offices, plants and AEBEREFEANAREEEHRER T
machineries and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease WAE WERERARRE - HES
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 4 years KL E EF 1 FAFE L (ZF = —
(2021: 1 year to 4 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an FAFFE4F) o TR E Bl HE 2ETE
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms 7 MR B AR AR o IR
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing EMBARF G ARAIRGERRER - A&
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the EEAEAMNTEEMETS L EFIH
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the FTHYERR o

contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably PEAN - REEEFREAZEHSHEANER
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence EHRIBEREEEREYT AEBEE
of either a significant event or a significant change in AL REAAE S TIT AN EE
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During o E—E - —_FR_E-_—F=A8
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there was no such =+—BHILEFE BEE@EBREG -
triggering event.
20. INVENTORIES 20. 17 &
2022 2021
—E-= - —F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T T
Construction materials SR R 20,364 6,024
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are RIFEHR  AEBNEFEE UK KT
stated at cost. iR -
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.8 5 EWRFI1E
2022 2021
—TEC-CF —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 EWERIE 95,089 81,861
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W EEEEEBRET
under ECL B R BR B (417) (237)
94,672 81,624

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %




mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The Group’s trade receivables represent progress billings receivables
from contract customers. The general credit terms of trade receivables

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.E S5 EWF
BiaE

(a) $$lm%%ﬁw RIBIE 6 KRR E
WHEEH -BSRRFBENEHRBRS

RIE (&)

were within 14 to 45 days (2021: 30 to 45 days). Application for
progress payment of contract works is made on a regular basis. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by directors.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the
invoice date of progress billing, and net of allowance is as follows:

7%14i45E|<_7_7¢ 30E45H)
NeBHNITREEMNRIDEHBFE - A
EEYHERRB RIBAEFRKEEE -2
=X SR ases -

AT ARAREERNE S R KIE D E R
MBEZHHAEEL MG EENRER D
1T

2022 2021
—E-—48F —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 89,315 76,106
31 to 60 days 31Z260H — —
Over 60 days 608 X £ 5,357 5,518
94,672 81,624
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEE S EWFIENREEIRS T
denominated in HKS$. ERIE
(b) As at 31 March 2022, approximately HK$82,115,000 (2021: (b) R—ZZE-_—_F=ZA=Z=+—8 "4
HK$19,730,000) of trade receivables were pledged to banks to secure 82,115,000 L (=& = — & :
bank borrowings. 19 730, 0003% TL) KB 5 e 451 REBER
JRITEEMER TR
22. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 2. 5HNEE(BE)
2022 2021
Contract assets EHNEE —E-- e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Arising from performance under KEBITERESH
construction contracts 288,372 311,797
Less: Allowance for contract asset B FEEEEEETH
under ECL BREERE (4,583) (2,763)
283,789 309,034
Receivables from contract with customers &8 B 78 3R & #E B 551558
within the scope of HKFRS 15, which are HEAREFPEHH
included in “Trade receivables” U HIR - 5T A
[ 8 5 W RIAE ] 93,417 81,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

22, CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED) 22. &8 EE (& &E) (&)

Amounts relating to contract assets are balances due from
customers under construction contracts that arise when the
Group receives an unconditional payments from customers in
line with a series of performance related milestones.

The decrease (2021: increase) in contract assets was result of
the certain construction projects completed and finalised during
the year (2021: increase in provision of construction services).

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous period is approximately HK$8,097,000 (2021:
HK$4,894,000), mainly due to the changes in estimate of the
stage of completion of certain construction contracts.

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
after more than one year is approximately HK$22,748,000
(2021: HK$47,131,000).

As at 31 March 2022, approximately HK$70,668,000 (2021:
HK$42,875,000) of retention receivables under contract assets
or liabilities were pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings.

BRAGHEENSERREARNATRE
WEFPIHER  RAKRBERERW2E
RFNFREES - B—RIIEORBED
BigE—%-

BREERD (ZZE % 18M) b
REATKEBES TRERR (ZF
—FRHERER RN A

FRN - MBEETEHHEERETT (o
BT BAHEEFMERR=SBLH
78,097,000 L (=& = — & :
4,894,000 70) - WHEEZHENSE TE

A EBRAE—FRRKENANEES
BHA) A22,748,0008 0 (Z T = —F ¢
47,131,000/ 75)

R—ZZTBE-_—_&FE==+—8 "4
70,668,000 &t (=& = — F :
42,875,000 TT) MENEEXEBET
REWRE S E AEREIRITEE mMIKIF
T ERAT ©

2022 2021
Contract liabilities EHEaE —E-_- —EZ—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT T T
Billings in advance of performance BHEF B FRIE
obligation
— Construction contracts —EEEL - 2,112

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are
balances due to customers under construction contracts. These
arise if a particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

BRARZESHMNANARBNEESNA
TRENEFHGER o WiFERRZBANR
HBBRIER AL HRER 225 R 1EH
YWzt Rlg 3R EfER -




mEMBEWRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

The decrease (2021: decrease) in contract liabilities in 2022
was mainly due to the decrease (2021: decrease) in advances
received from customers in relation to the provision of
construction project at the end of the reporting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. 50EE/ (81 (&)

RZEZ—_FEHNEBERLD (ZE=—
FEL) TEARREHRE @R
LEEMNBEREFPRERD (ZE=—
F D) TR e

Movements in contract liabilities: BHEEES :
2022 2021
—E-_F —_ - —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of year RE ) 2 &8 2,112 5,272
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of F N RE R U 2 2 B
recognising revenue during the year was AHEERDEFTA
included in the contract liabilities at the HYeaHas
beginning of the period (2,112) (5,272)
Increase in contract liabilities as a A 32 2805 B) TR R IR B 5
result of billing in advance of AR B EEZM
construction activities - 2,112
Balance at end of year R ERZ &R - 2,112

At the end of reporting period, none of billings in advance of
performance received that is expected to be recognised as
income after more than one year (2021: Nil).

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 283.

RBEHR - AL ERNBE —FRIE
RRBBANBEOBERRR(ZF=_—F:
&) -

AEREBE-ZSRHM

RECEIVABLES FE W =R IE

2022 2021

—E=-= —FE=—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Prepayments SN 3,606 7,568
Deposits (note a) Z& (fiza) 9,061 53,153
Other receivables (note b) H b e sk 8 (P 5Eb) 48,349 111,783
61,016 172,504
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEM BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of deposits included
a refundable trade deposit to a supplier of approximately
HK$50,090,000 (net of allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$1,090,000) for purchase of raw materials to support the Group’s
daily operation. Such purchase order was subsequently cancelled and
the refundable deposit, together with compensation of approximately
HK$51,180,000 arising from cancellation of the purchase order, has
been repaid to the Group in June 2021. No such refundable trade
deposit to a supplier as at 31 March 2022.

(b) As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of other receivables
included collateral deposits of approximately HK$48,216,000 (2021:
HK$82,171,000) for issuance of performance bonds for construction
contracts amounts totaling of approximately HK$77,336,000 (2021:
HK$183,894,000). Details are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK AND CASH

BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as
set out in note 28 and note 37 to the consolidated financial
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statements. 37) °
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FA&T
Pledged bank deposits BRI 68,385 36,353
Bank and cash balances RITRIB L% 57,898 6,400
126,283 42,753

Pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

B ERRTERARRITRA S B
AT 4 T 1A

2022 2021
—E-—F —E -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FA&T

HK$ BT 76,118 42,750
Renminbi AR 50,086 3
SGD 3 03 s 79 —

126,283 42,753

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

25. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 2. BEZENRERENSR
2022 2021
=== —ET-—fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FE T FATT
Trade payables B 5 IR (a) 200,237 334,205
Retention payables ERRE (b) 40,333 37,820
240,570 372,025

Notes: BMIeE -

(@)  The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the date (a8 UTAAEEMNEZEMNKEAKRE
of receipt of goods/services, is as follows: Y,/ BB AEENRE ST

2022 2021
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 107,798 107,488
31 to 60 days 31E60H 31,286 53,1038
61 to 90 days 61290H 46,531 46,418
Over 90 days 90H KA £ 14,622 127,196
200,237 334,205
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated AEBEE S EMNFENREEIES T
in HKS. FT{E -
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s trade payables of approximately RZZZZF=A=+—H ' x&EH
HK$17,192,000 (2021: HK$42,598,000) are guaranteed by a director Z 5 & 4 3B 417,192,000 T (=&
of a subsidiary of the Company. — —F : 42,598,000/ Jt) B A& A 7 H
BAT—LESER-

(b)  As at 31 March 2022, the amount of the Group’s retention payables by RZZE_=—F=A=+—8'  EBit#ER
expected to be due after more than twelve months was approximately B+ @A EIHNAEE Fgﬁ RE®
HK$12,476,000 (2021: HK$11,584,000). S A%I12,476,000% T (= —&:

11,584,000 7T) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention payables are AEBENRESHEREEEDRB T
denominated in HK$. F o

K. H. Group Holdings Limited @ 2021/22 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. Bt E AR H b B 1 R
b1 |
2022 2021
—E-= T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
Accruals BT & A 26,070 12,804
Other payables H {th & 5 3K I8 34,490 512
60,560 13,316
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other AEE MR E R K EMEMZIERN R
payables are denominated in HK$. HEIIEATFE -
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s other payables of R—E-_—_F=A=+—H A&EEH
approximately HK$34,490,000 (2021: HK$512,000) represent H b & 15 5 IE 934,490, ooo%fc (==
amount due to a director of a Group’s subsidiary. The amount — — % : 512,000 70) B A& E
due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B A FE B EE - RN A A E
B 2B RIREKER -
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
In the consolidated statement of financial position, lease RERA MR AR - SEREREERK
liabilities due for repayment after one year which contain REBAR—FRIBEENHERES
repayment on demand clause were classified as current HARDEE HEBEMIHBERE
liabilities. The maturity of lease liabilities is as follows: T

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
REEENT BEEENNHRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-_—_f& —E-—& CZB-_-_& -—ZE-_—&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TAT THET TAT

Within one year —ER 5,694 6,185 5,362 5,611
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ F-ERF (BREREME) 2,544 6,653 2,466 6,293

8,238 12,838 7,828 11,904
Less: Future finance charges B RREEER (410) (934)  N/ATER NATER
Present value of lease obligations HEEAMAE 7,828 11,904 7,828 11,904

Less: Amount due for settlement within  J& : AR 2{8 A R 2|4 (E (5%
12 months or contains repayment BHREKEBRKRNTE

on demand clause (shown under (RRBBEETIT)
current liabilities) (7,441) (9,976)
Amount due for settlement after B2 BB BERRRE
12 months 387

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. HEEE (&)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant
and equipment and motor vehicle under finance leases. The
average lease term is 4 years (2021: 4 years). As at 31 March
2022, the average effective borrowing rate was approximately
6.23% (2021: approximately 4.45%). As at 31 March 2022,
lease liabilities of approximately HK$7,828,000 (2021:
HK$11,602,000) bear fixed interest rate at the inception of the
lease and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The remaining balance are arranged at floating rates and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments. At the end of each lease term,
the Group has the option to purchase the leased plant and
machinery at a nominal price.

Except for lease liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$3,463,000 (2021: HK$4,716,000), the remaining lease
liabilities contain clause which give the lenders the right at
their sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

In addition, most of the Group’s lease liabilities are secured by
(i) the Group’s right-of-use assets in aggregate of approximately
HK$7,857,000 (2021: HK$21,591,000 secured by right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment) and (i) corporate
guarantee executed by the Company.

DRt EHERRETHE #BERK
HBARAREARNEBEBRNKEK - $ﬁﬁ
HABAF (ZEZ—F 1 4F) - R=ZF
——#=FA=+—H" lﬁaWﬁmﬂ
R#)6.28% (ZFE = —14F : #4.45%) o

W—_ZTE-_—_F#=ZA=+—H HE
8 E#7,828,0008 L (Z T = —F :

1Lmzmw%ﬂﬁ%ﬁJ4MMIm
FIEE - AmMLSAEE@mEAFEF
KRR - BT m%&@@ﬂfﬁﬁ'%
AEEEBRESRENERAR - FTEH
EREEEEENR M ERAES
NRETMLEMLHE - NS FAH4E REF -
AEEEENARERESHEKSS
K o

M E B E43,463,000/8 T (— T = —
F 1 4,716,000 7T) /N - A THEAE
B 5 46 T BN BT R 1 {a] B ) 2SR B B
BENZ2ERNBEREZIGX M AwmAE
BERCEETEZLAMRBIIEERE
£

FrEHEREYNBITEE -

o REBMALOWAEREHOA
SEMFERAEEES £47,857,0005
gL (ZF — —4 : 21,591,000/ JT i f&#
FPAEEENRYE  #eE KR EER)
R(NAR BRI Z AR ERIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

28. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED 28.R1TEM » K H

2022 2021

—E-= B —
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Bank loans RITER 87,357 6,129
Bank overdrafts RITEX 2,360 13,189
Trust receipt loans EEBIEE R 87,897 2,989
Factoring loans RIBE K 3,413 74,847
181,027 97,154

The bank borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand REECRITEFBIRERKEE - WA

and denominated in HK$. W ITETE ©

The average interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group R EER - NREERITERDFEHF

at the end of the reporting period were as follows: KR -

2022 2021

—E-= —E - —F

Bank overdrafts IRITEX 5.03% 5.03%
Bank loans RITERK 2.73% 1.16%
Trust receipt loans SR E &R 3.04% 3.23%
Factoring loans REER 2.69% 4.29%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates and expose FIBRITERREZBFIEGTE - @R

the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. SEEBREESREMNEER -

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s credit facilities are secured R-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H0 AEEKN

by: EERMEHRNUTHEE EAER :

()  The Group’s aggregated trade receivables and retention ) AEEESFRUKRBEBREHNE
receivables under contract assets of approximately EETZERRE S A X4
HK$152,783,000 (2021: HK$62,605,000) (note 21 and 152,783,000/ 7T (=& = — 4 :
note 22); 62,605,000 7T.) (B FE21 A0 B 5%

22) ;

(i) The Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately iy "EBEBZEEMBBEBITFRY

HK$68,385,000 (2021: HK$36,353,000) (note 24); 68,385,000 7Tt (=& = — 4 :
36,353,000/ 7T ) (HisE24) :

(i)  Corporate guarantee executed by the Company; (i) ANABFENLZRRER

(ivy The Group’s deposit and prepayment of life insurance (iv) $$@}\?1ﬂﬁ{% S iR & KA
policies of approximately HK$19,163,000 (2021: FIEAI19,163,0008 L (=& = —
HK$9,274,000) (note 18); E ©9,274,000% 7T) (FI5E18)

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED (CONTINUED)

(v The Group’s property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$9,392,000 (2021: HK$8,840,000) (note
17);

(vi)  Personal guarantee executed by a director of a subsidiary;
and

(vi) Receivables right for certain construction projects.

The Group’s bank borrowings contain clauses which give the
banks the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group has
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with loan
covenants. Its repayments up to date are in accordance with the
scheduled repayments of the term loans. The Group does not
consider that the banks will probably exercise their discretions
to demand repayments so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

OTHER BORROWING, UNSECURED

Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”), the former
immediate holding company, provided an unsecured loan of
HK$100,000,000 (“Unsecured Loan”) to the Company on 25
May 2018. The Unsecured Loan was interest-free and repayable
on 25 November 2020. New Grace Gain shall not be entitled to
demand early repayment and the Company has no right to make
early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

At the inception date of 25 May 2018, the fair value of
the Unsecured Loan was determined at approximately
HK$85,390,000, which was valued by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach. In
subsequent periods, the Unsecured Loan is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the Unsecured Loan is 6.33%.

28. SR ITBE X -

29

B (&)

AEENYE BERZED
9,392,000 L (=& = —F
8,840,000/ 7t) (BfaE17) :

(v)

(vi) MIBRRERERIMBEALR: K

(vii) FLE TREIAB &SRR -
AEBRITHRAREMEHER - TwAE
EEEERTHERECCEITEEN
BREE - %M GG TRTEN A
2RISR ZRAKEAEER -

AEEFTHERHARESEETERR
o HEE R AIMERIREHERD
BRRRERET ARERSREAE
BAEBTAZERTE - BRI T AT
TEEZRERNORISE - BEAKE
MEE TR EIEMNE — FF TN
& s MmR M E6(0) °

EIR A

Ht S
3 BB R A A

RIBE & ek 2 &5
New Grace Gain Limited ([ New Grace
Gan) R=ZZE—N\FREAZ-Z+HBARR
A a4 it 3K & 100,000,000/ 7T
([\BERER]) - BEBRERAEEL
ER_ZE_TF+—HA=Z+HHEE-
New Grace Gaini fE#E ZSKIZRTENR -
B 7R A3 R F ph AR R B SR IR AR

Eo
/NI

RIVEH _ZEZ-NFHEA_TH
B E88FERNAFEEBEEARLD
85,390,000/ 7T * WLTh— BB HX
MEMERBRRSRELFEEL -
REZHIRE - EERERER BRI X
TERBHA AR - BEWERNE
PR A & 7%36.33% ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

29. OTHER BORROWING, UNSECURED 29.Hfh{&%k » MK (&)

(CONTINUED)

Up to 31 March 2021, New Grace Gain and the Company have
entered into 3 supplemental agreements (“Agreements”) to
extend the repayment period of the Unsecured Loan for a total
18 months, i.e. the repayment term of 30 months has been
extended to 48 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, New Grace Gain
and the Company have further entered into a fourth and fifth
supplemental agreement (“Agreement 4” and “Agreement 5”)
to further extend the repayment period for an aggregate of
12 months, i.e. the repayment term of 48 months has been
extended to 60 months.

Save as the extension of the repayment period under the
Agreements, Agreement 4 and Agreement 5, other terms and
conditions of the Unsecured Loan remain unchanged.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, imputed interest income
of approximately HK$5,962,000 (2021: HK$5,962,000) and
imputed interest expense of approximately HK$5,962,000
(2021: HK$5,962,000) respectively, were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of the Unsecured Loan
was approximately HK$92,894,000 (2021: HK$92,894,000).

BT EBEZER AR D A @ 2021/22 F %

BEE T - —F=HA=+—8H" New
Grace GainEiZR A &) 5] 3 = {7l 7t Hh i
([ZEWw=E]) - BEERE R EZRE
ERAHA18ME A - BI30fE A 8 & K HR
BXERZE481EA -

REZE_ZE_—_F=A=+—HIF
€ © New Grace Gain# — 2 EE AN A &) 5]
Y ENBRERDER R ([ HEs] &
[Ha5])  BERBE—FSTERE K12
& A - BR48{E A # R HAR B IE K ZE60
&R o

RS - BBAR BRSO TERE
SRHRSM + A 4TI A A G R
9 TR -

REZE_E_—_F=A=+—HIF
€ - HEE AN B U A 495,962,000 7T (=
T = — % : 5,962,000/ 7T) N H#H & F
BB 495,962,000 T (Z T = —4F :
5,962,000/ L) ED BINGEBR KE
fth 2 S RER -

R-ZTE-—_F#=A=+—H EEFE
R BR E fE 49 592,894,000 T (=&
— —% : 92,894,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE-Z-_F=-A=+—AHLFE

30. DEFERRED TAX 30.E L 1E

The following is the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised AEEERANELERIBEEEREER
by the Group. T e

Losses

available

for offsetting

Accelerated tax against future

depreciation taxable profits Total
] {4 4K 8
RREZRB
IEBIERE i Al B &5 18 =i
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
As at 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZTFMA—H 7,673 (7,673) —
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss F AN Q/ A B
for the year 48 (48) —

As at 31 March 2021 and

R-ZE-_—%=A=+—H

1 April 2021 RZZE-—%1mHA—A 7,721 (7,721) —
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss FRMNE,/ (GtA) Bz

for the year (1,167) 1,167 —
As at 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=A=+—H 6,554 (6,554) =

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$82,185,000 (2021: HK$75,416,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$39,719,000 (2021:
HK$46,790,000) of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses
of approximately HK$42,466,000 (2021: HK$28,626,000)
and other deductible temporary differences due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

R—ZEBE-_—_F=A=+—H Hr&H
A] 4 4 58 2R 2R s R 89 oK B A 7R TH B 18
£ #182,185,000/8 T (=T = — & -
75,416,000/ 7T) ~ B 3t A& B i B &
18 4989,719,0008 T (=& = — &F :
46,790,000/ 7T) M RIELEHIE & & o
P oK 2RO A A T8 R - B 4 B
T A B) AT IEE 18 442,466,000/ 7T
— =T~ —1F : 28,626,000 70) & E Aty
ﬁjﬁuﬁiﬁﬁ%%gﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁ
RERTIEEE ] ERBE
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HIL&E

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. kA&

2022 2021
—E-F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Authorised: VETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/% & i
HK$0.01 each E{E0.018 T 2 il 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITERAER
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,0000% & f%
HK$0.01 each E{E0.018 T 2 il 4,000 4,000

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are
mainly: (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the total number of
the shares in issue; and (i) to meet financial covenants attached
to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives reports from major shareholders and other
connected persons on any changes in shares held by them to
ensure the continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year.

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

Breaches to fulfill the financial covenants would permit the bank
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

AEBEREANBRASREAKE R
BREXEBHENREBRBLEL K
APHEAESBRRERES DK -

AEEEBEEBEARARESEER
BN RRBERZEARE - A
B35 B IR  AR BT R R 42 [
BUARBRTHEYR BLRBEEHHH
EEENRPVEBHNTAFOEERE
RIRHE o

AEEFEXRNATINERERRE
ERBFREARZRLREETRNHE
BUEN25% » DA Ry OB 52 P B £ T
057+ R (i) 2 SR1TE SR AT BT B B 15 2258 o

AEEERETIERRREMBEEALA
B F AR I M B IRE - DA
FRREBEFEANFBET25%H R -

BE_ T _-_—_#k-_FT=-—%F=A
=t+—HIEFE  ARRE#HELTR
B EMNRARIERE -

REEBITHI IS 50 - RITARESL BN
WER - BEZT__FR_T=_—F
“A=1+—HILFE  WEEREMIR
1118 KB B 75 3255 o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBBRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. R 1+ &K

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
other contractors, business partners of the Company or any
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 19 February
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the Listing Date and any shares of the
Company which may be allotted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the offer size adjustment option. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any twelve months period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve months period up to and
including the date of the grant, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

ARRA R —BBRE S ([ZE
gl) BEER/AAKEREEXNIELE
BHaER2EERHEHLEER -4
B2 EE BB ARBRAEEEMAK
BRrHEBERBES  BREAAF
FAEAIF B A R ERIBAT - FEMITE
ERBUIFRNITES - BMA - HAED -
Hip A B  EBaEREH - Zt8E
R-ZF-—R"E-_ATNBER  KIEE
SITREESHER] - BRI BZ AR+
FRFEER

RIBZ A EIRR AR 2 RITE B A E
ZEBEANTERESENARAR L
MEHZERTROERARARRERE
EFBEA R E RBITZARBIEM
PRty 210% = WMEM[ + — 8 A MR -
REZERTRAERBEE ZBR
BA T RIT2RERNBEUNARFUE
AR 2 BTN Z 1% RR - KHEB
SRR B Z E R E B ERREERARE
ERBIRAE -

RYIAQRES EBTHABREE
BRERFETMBHEA LT ZBRER
EOBYIENITE S BRI o bA - R
FR+-—EABRR(EERBERLAB
H)R - WERFAQRAESZREHIF L
FMTESHAHETWBHEA L 2 TM
BB R i R AN A AT R R 2 B 37T R%
190.1% RIRIERA R H B HA A ARG B
15 & 2 48 {8 8 185,000,000/ 7t * Bl
BRBRRIRRAE EE A E -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 32. R K (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the offer date, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since
adoption of the Scheme.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33.7Z4< 2 =] Bt #& 4k i &= &% 5

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY HE2E
(a) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF (@) AR IR &
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-_—%
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B THET THET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A B A R H#E &= 171,591 5,795
Due from a subsidiary FEW—KMBARRE = 82,183
171,591 87,978

Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT 308 » &4 J H b U TR IA 300 52,102
Due from a subsidiary JEW— K I B A Rl Z0E 456 34,599
Bank and cash balances ROTRBEEH 1,090 334
1,846 87,035
Current liabilities mEAE

Accruals and other payables JEATE A K E e (I 50R 5,493 1,311
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A RIRIR 5,794 5,794
11,287 7,105
Net current (liabilities)/assets w8 (BE) EETFH (9,441) 79,930
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 162,150 167,908

Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Other borrowing, unsecured Hifas - EER 92,804 92,894
NET ASSETS EERE 69,256 75,014

Capital and reserves EXR @
Share capital R 31 4,000 4,000
Reserves e 33(b) 65,256 71,014
TOTAL EQUITY Eman 69,256 75,014

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

Chen Rongsheng
PR b B2
Executive Director

HITEE

KEFeN T _—_FA=+
BitELHAATESKEREE

Guan Jingdong
BER

Executive Director

HITEE
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 33.7Z< 2 7] Bt B AR S R I &
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY HEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (o) NRAEIEEESD
Share  Accumulated Total
premium losses equity
P 17 5 (B Rt EE AR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
(note 34(b))
(FF 5E34(b))
As at 1 April 2020 RZE-_ZTFWNA—AH 84,403 (8,677) 80,726
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FABE R EZH K E B
income and changes in equity K& iEZEEE
for the year — 9,712) 9,712)
As at 31 March 2021 and RZZE-_—F=A=+—H
1 April 2021 =T -—FMA—H 84,403 (13,389) 71,014
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE R EH NS BRE R
income and changes in equity £z & E)
for the year — (5,758) (5,758)
As at 31 March 2022 RZZE-_—_F#=A=+—H 84,403 (19,147) 65,256
34. RESERVES 34.#%%E
(a) GROUP (@) RNEE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEBFEREeERE ﬁ@b’ﬁ)ﬂz”ﬁ@
therein are presented in the consolidated statement TAEM‘%%&%E%??&SOEE’]Z
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and EankEMmrEHRERUARES
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages EREEFRET -
77 and 80 of the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
(b) SHARE PREMIUM (o) A& m(E

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance
costs of shares.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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35. SUBSIDIARIES 35.ff 8 A 7]

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of each reporting REREHROMMB AR FBLOT ¢
period are as follows:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and
establishment Date of incorporation/ paid up Percentage of ownership interest/
Name and operation establishment capital  voting power/profit sharing Principal activity
ARRL/ R BEfR BERE/R2R/
%R REE®Y AMAL/HIRS HERK AEEHAA IEEH
2022 2021
ZECCE “E-F
Direct ownership
BRIGE
iSend Limited Hong Kong 5 July 2019 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
YRERAR B ZE3-NELARA 10,0007 RERR
K. H. Development Holdings Limited The BVI 13 August 2015 US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
AERANS “E-RENATER 100%7 RERR
Send Link Technology Pte. Ltd. Singapore 8 August 2019 $§1,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
MR “E-AENANR 1,000,0003 70 T
Isend Investment Limited The BVI 8 February 2021 US$10,000 100% = Investment holding
AERAES “5--%-ANA 10,0005 REER
Indlrect ownership
BEAAE
Aixun Trading (Being) Co., Ltd. (note) PRC 23 April 2021 US$6,410,000 100% —  Trading of electronic
devices
BRE5 (0t R ARAT (M) P “R--EmAZ+=R 6,410,000£7 ETREES
K. H. Givil Engingering Limited Hong Kong 5 March 2001 HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of foundation
ATTAIEERAR B “T5-£-RTA 1007870 REHERS
K. H. Foundations Limited Hong Kong 4 January 1985 HK$32,962,000 100% 100% Provision of foundation
A ERRAA B -AN\IE-ARA 3,962,007 RHBERH
K. H. Holdings Limited Hong Kong 15 September 2006 HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ALERARAA B ZERENATIA %7 REER
K. H. Machinery Limited Hong Kong 23 January 2007 HK$3,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery
AIERARDA & “EEtE-Aot=H 3,000 7 BHAESE
K. H. Piling & Engingering Limited Hong Kong 8 November 2012 HK$100 100% 100%  Inactive
ATEIEERAA B “E-E+-ANR 10087 ErBesh
Isend Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong 17 March 2021 HK$10,000 100% —  Investment holding
EARE (B8)ERAT &k TRC-EZAT4A 10,0007 RERR
Note: This subsidiary is registered as limited liability company PHEE - LMY D AR B R EDA R AARE
(foreign-invested enterprise sole investment) under the PRC Law. FERAR(INEGBERSE) °
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

i)

i

During the year ended 31 March 2022, imputed
interest income and imputed interest expense of
approximately HK$5,962,000 (2021: HK$5,962,000)
and HK$5,962,000 (2021: HK$5,962,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, transfer
from right-of-use assets to property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$5,873,000 (2021:
HK$20,534,000) was made.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, addition to
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$1,517,000
(2021: HK$13,188,000), out of which approximately
HK$nil (2021: HK$1,710,000) was settled by cash
and the remaining balance of HK$1,517,000 (2021:
HK$11,478,000) has been recorded as lease
liabilities.

6.4 HERERMT

(@) BEAFEAERS

)

i

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %

HE_ZT-_—F=A=+—
BIEFE #EFBRAL
5,962,000 L (=& = —
4 : 5,962,000/ 7T) M HEHE
A 8. B 3% #95,962,00078 7T
— T~ — 4 : 5,962,000/
L) AR rEEE R E
ftb 2 T W 2 R FERR o

HE-_ZT-_—_F=fF=+—
HEFE BFRAEEES
BEYE - HBERE ﬁiﬁ
5,873,000/ T (=& = —
£ : 20,534,000/ 7T) °

HE_ZT-_—_F=F=+—
HIEFE FRBEERE
431,517,000 L (Z & = —
£ :13,188,000/ 7t) © H
FHEBT (T —F:
1,710,000/ 7T) A IR € 4
& fSTNEERR1,517,0008 7T
(ZZT = —4% : 11,478,000/
) ABREFHEAE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details of the changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RERTRERME (F)

(o)

MEEDMELARN
¥ AR

TRIIRAEBBA D HEE
BENEHFE  BERS BRI
SR o MATHFELE B
ERSRELAKRRALRENS
REAEBRARSRBET D E
AREEDFFERERRNEE -

Bank Other
Lease  borrowings, borrowing,
liabilities secured unsecured
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29) Total
(note)
BITER Hit e
HEER i BEHA
(HaE27) (K#F28) (KfzE20) @t
(&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL FAL TEL
Balance as at 1 April 2020 RIZZZENA-ANGRE 10,228 47,294 92,894 150,416
Changes from financing cash flows: RERERSHEZEE !
Bank borrowings raised BERTER = 205,030 = 205,030
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRTER = (168,359) — (168,359)
Repayment of lease liabilties EEHEAR (9,772) = = 9,772)
Other changes: Hit 25
Imputed interest income (note 36(a)(i) ~ HEEF| S YA (Fi7E36(a)()) = = (5,962) (5,962)
Imputed interest expense (note 36(a)(i) #5785 5% (Hiz£36(a)() = = 5,962 5,962
Additions to lease liabilities (note 36(a)i) 78 E & 3 i (B 5E36(a)il)) 11,478 = = 11,478
Termination of leases RILHRE (30) = = (30)
1,676 36,671 — 38,347
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZE--%=fA=1-H 11,904 83,965 92,894 188,763
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36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 36. &4 HE & RE XM (&)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(o) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES b) BMMEFEFELEEEMN
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HER(8)
(CONTINUED)

Bank Other
Lease  borrowings, borrowing,
liabilities secured unsecured
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29) Total
(note)
RATER - Hipfes
HEEE i BER
(Mizkar) (Hz£28) (Mf&t20) @t
(Mfat)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TEn TAT TEn

Restated balance as at 1 April 2021 RZE_-FNA-BH
e 11,904 83,965 92,894 188,763

Changes from financing cash flows: REREREHEC2H:

Bank borrowings raised BERTER = 289,013 = 289,013
Repayment of bank borrowings ERBITER = (194,311) = (194,311)
Repayment of lease liabilities ERNEAR (5,593) = = (5,593)
Other changes: Hit 25
Imputed interest income (note 36(a)fi)  HEEFI S A (K 536(a)() = = (5,962) (5,962)
Imputed interest expense (note 36(a)(i)  #EE 7 8552 (F5£36(a)() = = 5,962 5,962
Additions to lease liabilities (note 36(a)i)) & & f& 1% i (i 7:36(a)lii)) 1,517 = = 1,517
(4,076) 94,702 — 90,626
As at 31 March 2022 R=B--%=f=1-H 7,828 178,667 92,894 279,389
Note: B &E -
The bank overdraft was excluded from the bank borrowings secured R-BE-_—FR_FT-_—F=A=+—
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. H - RITEX W EWATERIRITER

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—_Z-_—#=-A=+—HILHE

36. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES

Amounts included in consolidated statement of cash flows

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RERTRERME (F)

AE R 7 AR
HARARSRBRNSEES

(c)

comprise the following: A& IE :
2022 2021
—E-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FET
Within operating cash flows REEREREA 572 339
Within financing cash flows REEREREA 5,593 9,772
The amounts relate to the lease HENHERSE@AN
rental paid Gk 6,165 10,111
37. PERFORMANCE BONDS 37.BHARITE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has provided RIFEBRR - NEBEE R — KRR A A
guarantees to an insurance company as follows: IR TR
2022 2021
—E_-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Guarantees on performance bonds for BREESABHNRES
construction contracts RREER 83,248 189,806
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37. PERFORMANCE BONDS (CONTINUED) 37.BHRTE (E)

38.

As at 31 March 2022, the securities for the Group’s
performance bonds for construction contracts are as follows:

(i) guarantees on performance bonds amounting to
approximately HK$77,336,000 (2021: HK$183,894,000)
are secured by (i) the Group’s other receivables of
HK$48,216,000 (2021: HK$82,171,000); (ii) a personal
guarantee executed by a director of a subsidiary of the
Company; and (iii) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company and a subsidiary of the Company.

(i) guarantee on a performance bond amounting to
approximately HK$5,912,000 (2021: HK$5,912,000)
is secured by (i) the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$10,355,000 (2021: HK$10,349,000);
(ii) a personal guarantee executed by a director of
a subsidiary of the Company (2021: Nil) and (iii) the
corporate guarantee executed by the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In May 2015, a subcontractor claimed against the Group
for certain construction works (the “Dispute”). The total
amount of claim made by the subcontractor is approximately
HK$20,329,000 and the Group had made a security deposit into
court in November 2020.

Pursuant to the deed of indemnity executed by the then
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company, New
Grace Gain and its ultimate beneficial owners, Mr. Yeung Sau
Ming, Boris, Mr. Lau Tai Wah, Gilbert and Mr. Yue Suen Leung,
in favour of the Company, each of them has irrevocably and
unconditionally, jointly and severally, agreed to indemnify the
Group against, among others, all loss and damages arising from
the Dispute.

In September 2021, the Group settled the Dispute by releasing

RZE_—_F=A=+—H AEEKN
REASVBHRES ZEFWT

(i) BAREEZERLT7,336,000
B (ZZ — — 4 : 183,894,000
7 TT) T BA() 2N 2 B E fib B U FR B
48,216,000 L (=& = — F :
82,171,000/8 7r) i (ii)4~ 2 A i &8
NAEFHEL 2 AER - i)
KRB MARE —RHE R R
2R RERIEER

(i) BHRIBS ZERL5,912,000
B (ZE Z— —%F :5,912,000/%8
TC) THBA() AR SR B B 4K R dR 1T 17 3K
#910,355,000/% 70 (=& = —4F -
10,349,000/ 7T ) (i)~ & — Y
BARM—REEE iZfI}\W%
(ZZ=—F : 8) : R(i)AA
N2 A REREER

38.AREE

R-_ZT—RFRHA —RBHBEARET
BEIEMAEBRERE(T4H]) -
ZoBEEMREBETELA20,329,000/8
T MAEBR-Z-FF+— A%
BTIELREB S o

BERAARERIERBREREZRE
New Grace Gain kX H &KL E =R A5
FREE BIREEERRERFLEENU
KRR AT AMBILNBERE
B BESEETAIBUEE R ER T
AESARE (P ei) Bismm
EEN—YBRARIEEHERAEEE
R o

R-ZEB-_—FhA AEEBEBAS

the court security deposit so deposited into the court to the BB W FOERT B (RS /i\ﬁﬁ,gtgwﬁiﬁjg
subcontractor. Such payment has been reimbursed and borne iR - BANFEEE Lt BEHRSE

by New Grace Gain pursuant to the deed of indemnity as
mentioned above.

BT EBEZER AR D A 2021/22 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. E AR IE
At the end of reporting period, the Group did not have any RS R - AN B LR ] & AR IE
capital commitments (2021: Nil). —E—F )
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40.BBH AR S
(@) In addition to those related party transactions and @ BEREVBRERHEM T IFEED
balances disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated ZEBE R P REEHRIN - AEE
financial statements, the Group had the following material RERNDEERER FETATE
transaction with its related party during the year: AR
2022 2021
—E-= - —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Rental expenses charged by a related — R A 7 UL
company (note i) &Mz (BED) 1,466 1,466
Salary paid to a related party (note ii) T TEB TS
(B 7ii) 738 180
Notes: B &E -

(i) Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a former director of the Company, (i)
who resigned on 13 August 2018 but still retained as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021, has beneficial interest in this related
company.

(i) Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a director of certain subsidiaries of (if)
the Group, whose spouse received the salary during the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2021/22 Annual Report
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(0)

40.EABE S R 57 (&)

(CONTINUED)
Compensation of key management personnel of the b) AKEFEZEEBEABHH :
Group:

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E - —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THExT T T

Short term employee benefits EEEERT 8,326 8,044

Pension scheme contributions RIRET S 52 52
Total compensation paid to MEZEBABLGEN

key management personnel e FkE 8,378 8,096

Key management personnel represents the independent
non-executive directors and executive directors of the
Group, managing director and general manager of the

Group’s subsidiaries.

Further details of employee benefits expense and
directors’ emoluments are included in notes 13 and 14
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the COVID-19 outbreak in the second half year of 2021,
a series of precautionary and strict control measures have
been and continued to be implemented across the globe. The
Group is paying close attention to the development of, and
the disruption to business and economic activities caused
by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
financial position, cash flows and operating results of the Group.
Given the dynamic nature of the COVID-19 outbreak, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of its impacts on
the Group’s financial position, cash flows and operating results
at the date on which these financial statements are authorised

for issue.

42. APPROVED OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEEBEREMBRFEFENEEREERE

for the last five financial years is set out below: BERMEHINAT :
RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH BE=ZA=1t—HLEEEZ
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ZE--f —E-—F ZZ-TF ZT-NF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TAL FiET TEL FTiEx

Revenue U zs 751,767 933,797 374,903 203,015 225,579
Cost of services rendered FTHR (L AR 7% A A (722,019) (892,144) (334,061) (201,188) (222,759)
Gross profit EH 27,312 41,653 40,842 1,827 2,820
Other income Hip A 8,084 12,699 3,545 15,921 137
Administrative and other THREMEERY

operating expenses (46,441) (43,626) (34,627) (40,589) (30,624)
Provision for ECL on trade HEHEUFERANEE

receivables and contract assets ~ HIEHE EE BT REE (910) (2,142) (1,521) — —
(Loss)/profit from operations gemE(BR) /&7 (9,519) 8,584 8,239 (22,841) (27,667)
Finance costs BEKA (8,825) (7,513) (7,230) (6,266) (1,430)
(Loss)/profit before tax BREA (B8) /&5 H (18,344) 1,071 1,009 (29,107) (29,097)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fries (X)) /#Ee ] — — = 3,907
(Loss)/profit and total AAABEEAEEER

comprehensive income for the (BR)/&FLEE
year attributable to owners of the ~ Uiz5 4858

Company (18,346) 1,071 1,000 (29,107)  (25,190)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH MR=ZA=1+—B2EERK
a8\
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

ZE--f ZE-—F ZZ-FF ZE-NF ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$:000
TERT AT FTAEL FEL FTAL

Total assets AELE 658,020 682,892 418,791 327,270 237,529
Total liabilities BERE (582,879) (589,405) (326,375) (235,863) (112,515)
Net assets BESE 75,141 93,487 92,416 91,407 125,014
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